
 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

2:00 P.M. WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2023 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Ed Lee, President; Bruce Kuebler, Vice President; Jack Curtis, Director; Laurie Lary, Director; Peggy Wiles, Director 

409 Old Baldwin Rd Ojai CA 93023  |  805-646-3403  |  VenturaRiverWD.com 

The meeting will be held in person and via Zoom by phone & video conference. The meeting will be 
recorded. To attend/listen to the meeting please call Toll Free US 1 (888) 788-0099 or 1 (877) 853-5247 

Meeting ID: 822 1803 9151 Password: 964370 Zoom Link: Zoom Link 

AGENDA 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & FLAG SALUTE 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT – FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (LIMIT 5 MIN / PER PERSON) 

3. CONSENT AGENDA: 
A. MINUTES SEPTEMBER 20, 2023, 
B. PAYMENTS & CHECKS FOR SEPTEMBER  
C. FINANCIALS FOR JULY & AUGUST 

 
4. APPROVE PAYMENT FOR EMERGENCY SERVICES RENDERED TO REPAIR SCADA 

COMMUNICATION ISSUES  
 

5. GOALS UPDATE 
 

6. RESOLUTION 2023-360: UPDATE TO RULES & REGULATIONS 
 

7. RESOLUTION 2023-361: MODIFICATIONS TO STAFF POSITIONS,  
 

8. RESOLUTION 2023-362: CONCURRENCE WITH VOLUNTEER AGREEMENT IMPLEMENTATION  

9. BOARD REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 
A. UPDATE ON THE UVRGA- BRUCE KUEBLER 
B. ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER REPORT ON CSDA CONFERENCE 

 
10. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT ON WATER & DISTRICT STATUS 

11. OLD & NEW BUSINESS 
A. ESTABLISH AD-HOC COMMITTEE: MATILIJA DAM RESTORATION PROJECT 

12. CLOSED SESSION 
The Board of Directors may hold a closed session to discuss the following items: 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 
 (Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Gov. Code § 54956.9) Name of case: Santa Barbara 

Channelkeeper v. State Water Resources Control Board, et al., Los Angeles County Superior 
Court Case No. 19STCP01176 (formerly San Francisco County Superior Court Case No. 
CPF-14-513875) case update.  

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT 
 
If you require special accommodation for attendance at or participation in this meeting, please notify our 
office 24 hours in advance at (805) 646-3403 (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 

Right to be heard: Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any item of interest to the public, which is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. The request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board’s 
consideration of the item. No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized 
by subdivision (b) of 54954.2 of the Government Code and except that members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond 
to statements made or questions posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the Government 



Page 1 of 2 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 20, 2023 

The director’s present were: Jack Curtis, Bruce Kuebler, Laurie Lary, Ed Lee and Peggy Wiles. Also present 
were the District’s legal counsel Stuart Nielson, Assistant General Manager Alma Quezada, and Office 
Manager Emily Arnbrister. Public Present: Marbe Manzano, John Dickinson, Marcelino Pena, Christine 
Salsbury and Raymond Welch of Casitas Mutual Water Company. Public present via zoom: Tom Reed of 
Casitas Mutual Water Company. 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER - President Ed Lee called the meeting to order at 2:00 P.M. Flag salute
led by Bert Rapp.

2. OATH OF OFFICE- NEWLY APPOINTED OFFICIAL: Dr. Laurel Lary took the Oath of Office to fill
Nathan Rosser’s position. The Oath was administered by Bert Rapp in his capacity as Secretary.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA) – None.
4. CONSENT AGENDA:

A. MINUTES AUGUST 16, 2023
B. PAYMENTS & CHECKS FOR AUGUST 2023
C. FINANCIALS FOR MAY & JUNE

Jack Curtis moved for approval of the consent agenda seconded by Bruce Kuebler and the motion 
carried 5-0. 

5. APPROVE CONSOLIDATION AGREEMENT WITH CASITAS MUTUAL WATER COMPANY: A
consolidation agreement is required to begin the merging process between Casitas Mutual Water
Company and Ventura River Water District to pursue any available grant monies needed for water
infrastructure improvements. There was general board discussion regarding this item. Public
Comment: John Dickenson, Chairperson of Casitas Mutual Water District voiced support of merging
with the District, and explained how merging authority is assigned to the Board by the By-Laws and a
recent shareholder vote. The Casitas Mutual Board undertook the election to solidify shareholder
approval for consolidation. Recommended Action: Approve the Consolidation Agreement as
amended between the District and Casitas Mutual. Peggy Wiles moved for approval of the
recommended action, seconded by Jack Curtis and the motion carried 5-0.

6. RESOLUTION 2023-359: REIMBURSEMENT RESOLUTION FOR STATE REVOLVING FUND
MONIES, 2023 WATER PROJECTS: A reimbursement resolution is required by the State Water
Resources Control Board - Drinking Water State Revolving Fund as part of the loan application to
construct the 2023 Water Projects. Public Comment: None. Recommended Action: Approve
resolution 2023-359. Bruce Kuebler moved for approval of the recommended action, seconded by
Peggy Wiles and the motion carried 5-0.

7. CALWARN ARTICLES OF AGREEMENT, MUTUAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT & RESOLUTION:
CalWARN is a state-wide resource and participation is recommended by the Ventura County Grand
Jury to ensure adequate water for wildfire suppression. Public Comment: None. Recommended
Action: Authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary paperwork for VRWD to become a
signatory to the CalWARN mutual assistance agreement. Jack Curtis moved for approval of the
recommended action, seconded by Bruce Kuebler and the motion carried 5-0.

8. BOARD REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED & UPDATE ON THE UPPER VENTURA RIVER
GROUNDWATER AGENCY (UVRGA) – No updates to report.

9. WATER & DISTRICT UPDATE: The static aquifer level at Well #2 on September 1, 2023, was at
elevation 544.2 feet and decreased 2.5 feet since the first of last month. The aquifer is currently 28.9
feet above the 35-year average for September 1st. Well #1 is pumping 1,076 GPM, down 31 GPM from
last month. Well #7 is pumping 831 GPM, down 31 GPM from last month. Well #2, #3, #4 & #6 were

ATTACHMENT 3A

Agenda Packet - Page 1 of 96



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

offline in August. Supplemental Casitas water was not purchased. Sales dollars billed on August 31, 
2023, amounted to $300,892, under budget by $23,352 for August. Water sold in August 2023 
amounted to 37,439 HCF, a decrease of 40.1% below the 62,509 HCF sold in August 2013. On 
September 1, 2023, Lake Casitas level was at 72.6% of capacity at an elevation of 540.33 feet. The 
lake has decreased 0.6% since last month.  

 

10. FILLING GENERAL MANAGER POSITION: The General Manager is set to retire December 31, 2023. 
The Assistant General Manager was hired to help with workload and train to potentially become GM. 
The board has the option to begin recruitment for a General Manager or hire the Assistant General 
Manager. Bruce Kuebler moved to hire Alma Quezada as General Manager, seconded by Peggy Wiles, 
and the motion carried 5-0.  
 

11. OLD & NEW BUSINESS: None. 
 

12. EXECUTIVE SESSION – None.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 2:58 pm. 
 
Attested: 

_____________________________     
Bert J. Rapp, Secretary       

ATTACHMENT 3A

Agenda Packet - Page 2 of 96



Date Vendor Description Amount

9/1/23 IRS Federal Tax Deposit 9,039.92$         

9/1/23 CALPERS Classic 3,004.48$         

9/1/23 CALPERS Pepra 2,581.58$         

9/1/23 EXPERTPAY Child Support 97.00$  

9/5/23 CALPERS 457 3,575.00$         

9/5/23 EDD State Tax Deposit 1,507.91$         

9/6/23 WEX Fuel 1,314.12$         

9/6/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 145.00$  

9/12/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 146.72$  

9/12/23 MECHANICS BANK Analysis Charges 751.12$  

9/15/23 IRS Federal Tax Deposit 8,500.97$         

9/15/23 EDD State Tax Deposit 1,395.07$         

9/15/23 TIAA Ricoh Printer 208.87$  

9/15/23 EXPERTPAY Child Support 97.00$  

9/15/23 VANCO Bank Check Elimination 85.00$  

9/18/23 SCE Electric 15,942.21$      

9/18/23 CALPERS UAL-Classic 3,753.25$         

9/18/23 CALPERS 457 3,575.00$         

9/18/23 CALPERS Classic 2,936.50$         

9/18/23 CALPERS Pepra 2,502.57$         

9/19/23 ACWA Health Insurance 11,586.48$      

9/19/23 AT&T Mobile Phones 413.92$  

9/19/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 328.56$  

9/19/23 IVR Robocalls 83.81$  

9/22/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 75.00$  

9/22/23 MATILIJA WATER Office Water 24.24$  

9/26/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 265.01$  

9/29/23 IRS Federal Tax Deposit 8,524.77$         

9/29/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 97.00$  

Total Online A/P Payments 82,558.08$      

Check Number Vendor Reason Amount

None

Online A/P Payment Transactions - September 2023

Voided Checks

ATTACHMENT 3B

Agenda Packet - Page 3 of 96



Page: 110/12/23 Ventura River Water District
4:26:29 PM

Check Dates: 9/1/2023 to 9/30/2023

AP Check Register (Current by Bank)

Status*Date AmountVendor ID Payee NameCheck No.

BANK ID:  RBOGEN - OPERATING ACCOUNT 10005

ALMA QUEZADA17863 P09/15/23 $347.15AQUEZA

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES17864 P09/15/23 $69.3010197

BADGER METER17865 P09/15/23 $24,367.2010094

CHASE CARD SERVICES17866 P09/15/23 $1,813.32790

DATA PROSE17867 P09/15/23 $1,141.9810111

FAMCON PIPE & SUPPLY, INC.17868 P09/15/23 $140.771390

FGL, INC.17869 P09/15/23 $186.001393

KELLY CLEANING & SUPPLIES17870 P09/15/23 $290.001730

MEINERS OAKS HARDWARE17871 P09/15/23 $152.681950

MITEC SOLUTIONS LLC17872 P09/15/23 $1,518.192025

NELSON COMIS KETTLE & KINNEY,17873 P09/15/23 $1,625.0010204

OJAI AUTO SUPPLY LLC17874 P09/15/23 $58.252226

OJAI LUMBER COMPANY, INC.17875 P09/15/23 $24.242250

OJAI TRUE VALUE17876 P09/15/23 $42.8910127

OJAI VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT17877 P09/15/23 $118.242400

PHOENIX CIVIL ENGINEERING, INC17878 P09/15/23 $1,985.002625

UNIVAR USA INC17879 P09/15/23 $1,507.763555

WATERSHED PROGRESSIVE17880 P09/15/23 $13,065.0010163

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES17881 P09/30/23 $161.6310197

BADGER METER17882 P09/30/23 $1,057.4210094

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DIST17883 P09/30/23 $11,251.48750

DIAL SECURITY17884 P09/30/23 $40.001268

E J HARRISON & SONS, INC17885 P09/30/23 $500.681300

FAMCON PIPE & SUPPLY, INC.17886 P09/30/23 $7,821.961390

FGL, INC.17887 P09/30/23 $680.001393

FIREMASTER17888 P09/30/23 $547.7610067

MEINERS OAKS HARDWARE17889 P09/30/23 $8.561950

MITEC SOLUTIONS LLC17890 P09/30/23 $1,848.762025

OJAI TRUE VALUE17891 P09/30/23 $14.4710127

SDRMA17892 P09/30/23 $3,031.253175

SHRED-IT17893 P09/30/23 $48.273080

VENTURA SIGNS & SCREEN PRINTIN17894 P09/30/23 $1,101.2110206

BANK RBOGEN REGISTER TOTAL: $76,566.42

GRAND TOTAL : $76,566.42

* Check Status Types: "P" - Printed  ; "M" - Manual ; "V" - Void ( Void Date ); "A" - Application; "E" - EFT
** Denotes broken check sequence.

ATTACHMENT 3B

Agenda Packet - Page 4 of 96



Ventura River Water District

Income Statement

For the period(s) of 7/1/2023 through 7/31/2023

10/12/23
4:12:18 PM

 Revenues

WATER SALES $222,702.18 %96.6

DELINQUENT FEES 2,290.00 1.0

CONSERVATION PENALTY FEES 5,445.00 2.4

$230,437.18Total Revenues %100.0

 Operating Expenses

WATER PURCHASES & CASITAS BASE FEES $1,046.53 %0.5

UVRGA PUMP FEE 10,476.67 4.5

SALARIES 59,190.66 25.7

PTO & SICK 13,564.16 5.9

SOCIAL SECURITY & MEDICARE 5,185.62 2.3

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 9,633.83 4.2

GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE 11,586.48 5.0

WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE 1,508.17 0.7

LIABILITY INSURANCE 6,825.25 3.0

BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION 640.00 0.3

CONTRACT LABOR 135.87 0.1

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES(Audit, Engr,Draft) 1,666.96 0.7

FUEL 150.61 0.1

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 107.47 0.0

OFFICE MAINTENANCE 4,637.06 2.0

FIELD EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 164.10 0.1

METER REPLACEMENT & MAINTENANCE 1,045.59 0.5

WATER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE 4,972.20 2.2

$132,537.23Total Operating Expenses %57.5

 General & Administrative Expenses

UTILITIES 3,681.97 1.6

TELEPHONE & INTERNET 659.85 0.3

LAFCO FEES 164.75 0.1

BANK FEES AND MISCELLANEOUS 821.66 0.4

MEMBERSHIP,DUES,SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,969.08 0.9

PUBLIC RELATIONS/EDUCATION/CONSERV 2,161.86 0.9

DIRECTORS TRAVEL/EDUCATION 63.22 0.0

SECURITY 289.00 0.1

POSTAGE 991.88 0.4

OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,812.35 0.8

VENTURA RIVER WATERSHED ISSUES 157.01 0.1

$12,772.63Total General & Administrative Expenses %5.5

Total Expenses %63.1$145,309.86

$85,127.32 %36.9Income (Loss) from Operations

 Other Income (Expense)

PROPERTY TAXES )(6,127.38 )(2.7

INTEREST INCOME 1.53 0.0

OTHER REVENUE 4,106.94 1.8

)$(2,018.91Total Other Income (Expense) %)(0.9

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes %36.1$83,108.41

Net Income (Loss) %36.1$83,108.41

ATTACHMENT 3C

Agenda Packet - Page 5 of 96



Actual Budget Variance % Actual Budget Variance %

$222,702.18 $257,334.00 $(34,631.82) (13.5)%           $222,702.18 $257,334.00 $(34,631.82) (13.5)%  

0.00 125.00 (125.00) (100.0) $0.00 125.00 (125.00) (100.0)

2,290.00 1,400.00 890.00 63.6 $2,290.00 1,400.00 890.00 63.6 

5,445.00 2,500.00 2,945.00 117.8 $5,445.00 2,500.00 2,945.00 117.8 

0 0 0$230,437.18 $261,359.00 $(30,921.82) (11.8)%           $230,437.18 $261,359.00 $(30,921.82) (11.8)%  

1,046.53 15,416.67 14,370.14 93.2 1,046.53 15,416.67 14,370.14 93.2 

10,476.67 10,500.00 23.33 0.2 10,476.67 10,500.00 23.33 0.2 

59,190.66 68,666.67 9,476.01 13.8 59,190.66 68,666.67 9,476.01 13.8 

13,564.16 6,083.33 (7,480.83) (123.0) 13,564.16 6,083.33 (7,480.83) (123.0)

5,185.62 5,333.33 147.71 2.8 5,185.62 5,333.33 147.71 2.8 

0.00 100.00 100.00 100.0 0.00 100.00 100.00 100.0 

9,633.83 10,583.33 949.50 9.0 9,633.83 10,583.33 949.50 9.0 

11,586.48 11,250.00 (336.48) (3.0) 11,586.48 11,250.00 (336.48) (3.0)

1,508.17 1,750.00 241.83 13.8 1,508.17 1,750.00 241.83 13.8 

6,825.25 6,916.67 91.42 1.3 6,825.25 6,916.67 91.42 1.3 

640.00 2,000.00 1,360.00 68.0 640.00 2,000.00 1,360.00 68.0 

135.87 10,000.00 9,864.13 98.6 135.87 10,000.00 9,864.13 98.6 

1,666.96 6,266.67 4,599.71 73.4 1,666.96 6,266.67 4,599.71 73.4 

150.61 2,000.00 1,849.39 92.5 150.61 2,000.00 1,849.39 92.5 

107.47 833.33 725.86 87.1 107.47 833.33 725.86 87.1 

4,637.06 5,833.33 1,196.27 20.5 4,637.06 5,833.33 1,196.27 20.5 

164.10 5,000.00 4,835.90 96.7 164.10 5,000.00 4,835.90 96.7 

1,045.59 6,500.00 5,454.41 83.9 1,045.59 6,500.00 5,454.41 83.9 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 

4,972.20 13,333.33 8,361.13 62.7 4,972.20 13,333.33 8,361.13 62.7 

0.00 2,916.67 2,916.67 100.0 0.00 2,916.67 2,916.67 100.0 

0.00 29,166.67 29,166.67 100.0 0.00 29,166.67 29,166.67 100.0 

0 0 0$132,537.23 $220,450.00 $87,912.77 39.9%              $132,537.23 $220,450.00 $87,912.77 39.9%  

3,681.97 12,833.33 9,151.36 71.3 3,681.97 12,833.33 9,151.36 71.3 

659.85 1,250.00 590.15 47.2 659.85 1,250.00 590.15 47.2 

164.75 166.67 1.92 1.2 164.75 166.67 1.92 1.2 

821.66 1,333.33 511.67 38.4 821.66 1,333.33 511.67 38.4 

1,969.08 2,083.33 114.25 5.5 1,969.08 2,083.33 114.25 5.5 

2,161.86 1,158.33 (1,003.53) (86.6) 2,161.86 1,158.33 (1,003.53) (86.6)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 

PUBLIC RELATIONS/EDUCATION/CONSERV

LEGAL NOTICES & NEWSLETTERS

General & Administrative Expenses

UTILITIES

TELEPHONE & INTERNET

LAFCO FEES

BANK FEES AND MISCELLANEOUS

MEMBERSHIP,DUES,SUBSCRIPTIONS

METER REPLACEMENT & MAINTENANCE

EQUIPMENT RENTAL

WATER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE

DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL

DEPRECIATION

Total Operating Expenses

CONTRACT LABOR

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES(Audit, Engr,Draft)

FUEL

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

OFFICE MAINTENANCE

FIELD EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

STATE PAYROLL TAXES (SUI, ETT)

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE

WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE

LIABILITY INSURANCE

BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION

Operating Expenses

WATER PURCHASES & CASITAS BASE FEES

UVRGA PUMP FEE

SALARIES

PTO & SICK

SOCIAL SECURITY & MEDICARE

Revenues

WATER SALES

SERVICE INSTALLATION

DELINQUENT FEES

CONSERVATION PENALTY FEES

Total Revenues

Ventura River Water District

Income Statement

(Original Budget to Actual Comparison)

For the period of  7/1/2023 Through 7/31/2023

Current Period Year To Date

ATTACHMENT 3C

Agenda Packet - Page 6 of 96



0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 

63.22 416.67 353.45 84.8 63.22 416.67 353.45 84.8 

289.00 416.67 127.67 30.6 289.00 416.67 127.67 30.6 

991.88 1,083.33 91.45 8.4 991.88 1,083.33 91.45 8.4 

1,812.35 1,750.00 (62.35) (3.6) 1,812.35 1,750.00 (62.35) (3.6)

157.01 4,166.67 4,009.66 96.2 157.01 4,166.67 4,009.66 96.2 

0.00 333.33 333.33 100.0 0.00 333.33 333.33 100.0 

0.00 8,333.33 8,333.33 100.0 0.00 8,333.33 8,333.33 100.0 

0 0 0Total General & Administrative Expenses $12,772.63 $35,324.99 $22,552.36 63.8%              $12,772.63 $35,324.99 $22,552.36 63.8%  

$145,309.86 $255,774.99 $110,465.13 43.2%              $145,309.86 $255,774.99 $110,465.13 43.2%  

0 0 0$85,127.32 $5,584.01 $79,543.31 1,424.5%         $85,127.32 $5,584.01 $79,543.31 1,424.5%  

$(6,127.38) $5,000.00 $(11,127.38) (222.5)%         $(6,127.38) $5,000.00 $(11,127.38) (222.5)%  

1.53 666.67 (665.14) (99.8) 1.53 666.67 (665.14) (99.8)

4,106.94 15,000.00 (10,893.06) (72.6) 4,106.94 15,000.00 (10,893.06) (72.6)

0.00 8,333.33 (8,333.33) (100.0) 0.00 8,333.33 (8,333.33) (100.0)

0 0 0Total Other Income (Expense) $(2,018.91) $29,000.00 $(31,018.91) (107.0)%         $(2,018.91) $29,000.00 $(31,018.91) (107.0)%  

$83,108.41 $34,584.01 $48,524.40 140.3%            $83,108.41 $34,584.01 $48,524.40 140.3%  

0 0 0Net Income (Loss) $83,108.41 $34,584.01 $48,524.40 140.3%            $83,108.41 $34,584.01 $48,524.40 140.3%  

Other Income (Expense)

PROPERTY TAXES

INTEREST INCOME

OTHER REVENUE

GRANT REVENUE

Income Before Taxes

OFFICE SUPPLIES

VENTURA RIVER WATERSHED ISSUES

BAD DEBT EXPENSE

CONSERVATION

Total Expenses

Income (Loss) from Operations

ELECTIONS

DIRECTORS TRAVEL/EDUCATION

SECURITY

POSTAGE

ATTACHMENT 3C

Agenda Packet - Page 7 of 96



As of 7/31/2023

Balance Sheet

Ventura River Water District10/12/23
4:18:17 PM

Assets

 Current Assets

FUNDS IN COUNTY TREASURY $736,682.35

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 526,979.24

PETTY CASH 580.03

SECURITY DEPOSIT CHECKING 11,008.74

RABO6073 95,193.39

PRO-EQUITIES 909,038.07

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 244,381.93

TREASURY INTEREST RECEIVABLE 215.35

CMWD PENALTY RECEIVABLE 76.56

GRANTS RECEIVABLE 30,226.00

PREPAID SECURITY MONITORING & MAINT 95.00

PREPAID WEB SERVICES 286.67

PREPAID INSURANCE 82,777.98

PREPAID COMPUTER MAINTENANCE 13,318.95

PREPAID OTHER 5,380.53

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 162,672.00

Total Current Assets A $2,818,912.79

 Property, Plant & Equipment

WATER SYSTEMS IMPROVEMENT $2,810,360.66

SCADA SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 59,597.10

DISTRICT 4 AND DISTRICT 7 118,245.00

WELLS 1,852,532.96

TANKS 1,412,845.83

PUMPS 277,620.38

METERS 79,791.94

TRUCKS 278,657.71

OFFICE AND SHOP EQUIPMENT 299,988.35

BUILDINGS 1,810,567.45

LAND,WATER & RIGHTS OF WAY 227,580.50

SCADA SYSTEM 37,541.85

BALDWIN EROSION PROTECTION 68,324.24

PIPELINES 2,905,339.00

COMPUTERS 1,810.14

RE-PLUMB ENCINO & THOMAS PRV VAULTS 33,783.75

WELL#3 & WELL#2 PUMP & PANEL REPLACEMENT 305,662.80

N. BALDWIN TANK REPAIR 11,204.91

SANTA ANA BLVD FIRE FLOW UPGRADE 21,700.50

TICO MUTUAL PROJECT 66,423.18

SRF WATER MAIN PROJECTS 409,298.44

SRF CONSTRUCTION POTHOLING 70,308.58

SRF SOLAR PROJECTS 105,445.07

REPLACE 2008 F-250 TRUCK 51,768.05

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION )(5,127,624.42

UPGRADE SCADA RADIOS 34,996.81

CASITAS SPRINGS EMERGENCY FIRE FLOW PUMP 15,825.75

GAIN/LOSS ON ASSET DISPOSAL 13,797.00

Total Property, Plant & Equipment A 8,253,393.53

Total Assets $11,072,306.32
A

Liabilities and Equity

 Current Liabilities

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE )$(1,681.32

PTO PAYABLE 169,383.70

ATTACHMENT 3C

Agenda Packet - Page 8 of 96



As of 7/31/2023

Balance Sheet

Ventura River Water District10/12/23
4:18:17 PM

CONSTRUCTION DEPOSITS PAYABLE 3,471.25

SECURITY DEPOSIT PAYABLE 6,295.03

DEPOSIT PAYABL-SVC INSTALL/HYDRANT METER 250.00

TICO MUTUAL TRUST 51,832.53

FLIEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT )(1,094.90

DEPENDENT CARE 2,958.23

NET PENSION LIABILITY 203,443.00

DEFERRED INFLOWS 213,131.00

Total Current Liabilities A $647,988.52

Total Liabilities $647,988.52
A

 Equity

INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS $7,786,425.00

UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 2,569,865.92

Current Year Profit/Loss A 68,026.88

 

Total Equity 10,424,317.80A

Total Liabilities and Equity $11,072,306.32

ATTACHMENT 3C

Agenda Packet - Page 9 of 96



Water System Improvements
Account Fixed Asset 23/24 Budget YTD Remaining/(Over) Description/Status
13014 Well #6 Retaining Wall 30,000.00$        30,000.00$              Retaining wall, gravel pad at Well #6
13040 Mixing Valve South Alto Tank 25,000.00$        25,000.00$              Mixing valve for South Alto Tank to prevent thermostratification
13061 Well #2 & 3 Pump & Pannel Replacement 300,435.00$      300,435.00$            Pump & Panel Replacement ct'd
13105 Casitas Springs Emergency Fire Flow Pump 41,000$             41,000.00$              Finish pump design and specs, contract award to Phoenix Civil Engineering
13094 Tico Mutual Annexation Project 20,000$             20,000.00$              LAFCo Application, Design Engineering, SRF Coordination
13098 SRF Water Main Projects , Planning for Environmental, Engr, Easemts 250,000$           250,000.00$            Awarded to Phoenix = $658,000 (13098 & 13099), Potholing & Easements
13100 SRF Solar Projects , Planning for Environmental, Engr 31,000$             31,000.00$              Awarded to Phoenix = $114,227, Ventura Energy Baldwin & Parker Site Interconnection Agreement
13010 Hydrant & Valve Replacement Project 205,000$           205,000.00$            To be completed Fall 2023 pending funding
13110 SCADA Communication Alarm & Cla-Val for Emergency backfill of Parker 25,000$             25,000.00$              Development of Communciation failure alarm and intergration of 4" Cla-Val at Parker Site

Total 927,435$           -$                   927,435$                 
Auto Equipment
Account Fixed Asset 23/24 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status
N/A
Shop Equipment
Account Fixed Asset 23/24 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status
N/A
Office Equipment
Account Fixed Asset 23/24 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status
N/A

Summary 927,435.00$      -$                   927,435.00$            

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT
Status of Capital Improvement Projects - FYE 2024

7/31/2023

ATTACHMENT 3C

Agenda Packet - Page 10 of 96



Ventura River Water District

Income Statement

For the period(s) of 8/1/2023 through 8/31/2023

10/12/23
4:12:46 PM

 Revenues

WATER SALES $314,717.74 %96.4

SERVICE INSTALLATION )(594.70 )(0.2

DELINQUENT FEES 1,975.00 0.6

CONSERVATION PENALTY FEES 10,215.00 3.1

$326,313.04Total Revenues %100.0

 Operating Expenses

WATER PURCHASES & CASITAS BASE FEES $11,625.22 %3.6

UVRGA PUMP FEE 10,476.67 3.2

SALARIES 60,927.08 18.7

PTO & SICK 10,840.42 3.3

SOCIAL SECURITY & MEDICARE 6,159.31 1.9

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 10,492.78 3.2

GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE 11,586.48 3.6

WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE 1,508.17 0.5

LIABILITY INSURANCE 6,825.25 2.1

BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION 900.00 0.3

CONTRACT LABOR 135.87 0.0

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES(Audit, Engr,Draft) 1,950.00 0.6

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 32.98 0.0

OFFICE MAINTENANCE 4,404.29 1.3

FIELD EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 6,578.76 2.0

METER REPLACEMENT & MAINTENANCE 55,013.79 16.9

WATER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE 1,600.65 0.5

DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL 1,300.00 0.4

$202,357.72Total Operating Expenses %62.0

 General & Administrative Expenses

UTILITIES 16,392.70 0.1

TELEPHONE & INTERNET 694.56 0.2

LAFCO FEES 164.75 0.1

BANK FEES AND MISCELLANEOUS 25.00 0.0

MEMBERSHIP,DUES,SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,789.08 0.5

SECURITY 289.00 0.1

POSTAGE 840.74 0.3

OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,006.00 0.3

VENTURA RIVER WATERSHED ISSUES 47.21 0.0

CONSERVATION 11,732.50 3.6

$32,981.54Total General & Administrative Expenses %5.2

Total Expenses %67.2$235,339.26

$90,973.78 %32.8Income (Loss) from Operations

 Other Income (Expense)

OTHER REVENUE 3,506.08 1.1

$3,506.08Total Other Income (Expense) %1.1

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes %33.8$94,479.86

Net Income (Loss) %33.8$94,479.86

ATTACHMENT 3C

Agenda Packet - Page 11 of 96



Actual Budget Variance % Actual Budget Variance %

$314,717.74 $277,550.00 $37,167.74 13.4%              $537,419.92 $534,884.00 $2,535.92 0.5%

(594.70) 125.00 (719.70) (575.8) (594.70) 250.00 $(844.70) -337.9%

1,975.00 1,400.00 575.00 41.1 4,265.00 2,800.00 $1,465.00 52.3%

10,215.00 2,500.00 7,715.00 308.6 15,660.00 5,000.00 $10,660.00 213.2%

0 0 #DIV/0!$326,313.04 $281,575.00 $44,738.04 15.9%              $556,750.22 $542,934.00 $13,816.22 2.54%

11,625.22 15,416.67 3,791.45 24.6 12,671.75 30,833.34 18,161.59 58.9%

10,476.67 10,500.00 23.33 0.2 20,953.34 21,000.00 46.66 0.2%

60,927.08 68,666.67 7,739.59 11.3 120,117.74 137,333.34 17,215.60 12.5%

10,840.42 6,083.33 (4,757.09) (78.2) 24,404.58 12,166.66 (12,237.92) -100.6%

6,159.31 5,333.33 (825.98) (15.5) 11,344.93 10,666.66 (678.27) -6.4%

0.00 100.00 100.00 100.0 0.00 200.00 200.00 100.0%

10,492.78 10,583.33 90.55 0.9 20,126.61 21,166.66 1,040.05 4.9%

11,586.48 11,250.00 (336.48) (3.0) 23,172.96 22,500.00 (672.96) -3.0%

1,508.17 1,750.00 241.83 13.8 3,016.34 3,500.00 483.66 13.8%

6,825.25 6,916.67 91.42 1.3 13,650.50 13,833.34 182.84 1.3%

900.00 2,000.00 1,100.00 55.0 1,540.00 4,000.00 2,460.00 61.5%

135.87 10,000.00 9,864.13 98.6 271.74 20,000.00 19,728.26 98.6%

1,950.00 6,266.67 4,316.67 68.9 3,616.96 12,533.34 8,916.38 71.1%

0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 100.0 150.61 4,000.00 3,849.39 96.2%

32.98 833.33 800.35 96.0 140.45 1,666.66 1,526.21 91.6%

4,404.29 5,833.33 1,429.04 24.5 9,041.35 11,666.66 2,625.31 22.5%

6,578.76 5,000.00 (1,578.76) (31.6) 6,742.86 10,000.00 3,257.14 32.6%

55,013.79 6,500.00 (48,513.79) (746.4) 56,059.38 13,000.00 (43,059.38) -331.2%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

1,600.65 13,333.33 11,732.68 88.0 6,572.85 26,666.66 20,093.81 75.4%

1,300.00 2,916.67 1,616.67 55.4 1,300.00 5,833.34 4,533.34 77.7%

0.00 29,166.67 29,166.67 100.0 0.00 58,333.34 58,333.34 100.0%

0 0 #DIV/0!$202,357.72 $220,450.00 $18,092.28 8.2%                $334,894.95 $440,900.00 $106,005.05 24.0%

16,392.70 12,833.33 12,382.84 96.5 20,074.67 25,666.66 5,591.99 21.8%

694.56 1,250.00 555.44 44.4 1,354.41 2,500.00 1,145.59 45.8%

164.75 166.67 1.92 1.2 329.50 333.34 3.84 1.2%

25.00 1,333.33 1,308.33 98.1 846.66 2,666.66 1,820.00 68.3%

1,789.08 2,083.33 294.25 14.1 3,758.16 4,166.66 408.50 9.8%

0.00 1,158.33 1,158.33 100.0 2,161.86 2,316.66 154.80 6.7%

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

PUBLIC RELATIONS/EDUCATION/CONSERV

LEGAL NOTICES & NEWSLETTERS

General & Administrative Expenses

UTILITIES

TELEPHONE & INTERNET

LAFCO FEES

BANK FEES AND MISCELLANEOUS

MEMBERSHIP,DUES,SUBSCRIPTIONS

METER REPLACEMENT & MAINTENANCE

EQUIPMENT RENTAL

WATER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE

DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL

DEPRECIATION

Total Operating Expenses

CONTRACT LABOR

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES(Audit, Engr,Draft)

FUEL

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

OFFICE MAINTENANCE

FIELD EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

STATE PAYROLL TAXES (SUI, ETT)

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE

WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE

LIABILITY INSURANCE

BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION

Operating Expenses

WATER PURCHASES & CASITAS BASE FEES

UVRGA PUMP FEE

SALARIES

PTO & SICK

SOCIAL SECURITY & MEDICARE

Revenues

WATER SALES

SERVICE INSTALLATION

DELINQUENT FEES

CONSERVATION PENALTY FEES

Total Revenues

Ventura River Water District

Income Statement

(Original Budget to Actual Comparison)

For the period of  8/1/2023 Through 8/31/2023

Current Period Year To Date

ATTACHMENT 3C

Agenda Packet - Page 12 of 96



0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

0.00 416.67 416.67 100.0 63.22 833.34 770.12 92.4%

289.00 416.67 127.67 30.6 578.00 833.34 255.34 30.6%

840.74 1,083.33 242.59 22.4 1,832.62 2,166.66 334.04 15.4%

1,006.00 1,750.00 744.00 42.5 2,818.35 3,500.00 681.65 19.5%

47.21 4,166.67 4,119.46 98.9 204.22 8,333.34 8,129.12 97.5%

0.00 333.33 333.33 100.0 0.00 666.66 666.66 100.0%

11,732.50 8,333.33 (3,399.17) (40.8) 11,732.50 16,666.66 4,934.16 29.6%

0 0 #DIV/0!Total General & Administrative Expenses $17,039.33 $35,324.99 $18,285.66 51.8%              $29,811.96 $70,649.98 $40,838.02 57.8%

$219,397.05 $255,774.99 $36,377.94 14.2%              $364,706.91 $511,549.98 $146,843.07 28.7%

0 0$106,915.99 $25,800.01 $81,115.98 314.4%            $192,043.31 $31,384.02 $(160,659.29) 511.91%

$0.00 $5,000.00 $(5,000.00) (100.0)%         $(6,127.38) $10,000.00 $(16,127.38) -161.3%

0.00 666.67 (666.67) (100.0) 1.53 1,333.34 (1,331.81) -99.9%

3,506.08 0.00 3,506.08 0.0 7,613.02 15,000.00 (7,386.98) -49.2%

0.00 8,333.33 (8,333.33) (100.0) 0.00 16,666.66 (16,666.66) -100%

0 0 #DIV/0!Total Other Income (Expense) $3,506.08 $14,000.00 $(10,493.92) (75.0)%           $1,487.17 $43,000.00 $(41,512.83) -96.54%

$110,422.07 $39,800.01 $70,622.06 177.4%            $193,530.48 $74,384.02 $119,146.46 160.2%

Net Income (Loss) $110,422.07 $39,800.01 $70,622.06 177.4%            $193,530.48 $74,384.02 $119,146.46 160.2%

Other Income (Expense)

PROPERTY TAXES

INTEREST INCOME

OTHER REVENUE

GRANT REVENUE

Income Before Taxes

OFFICE SUPPLIES

VENTURA RIVER WATERSHED ISSUES

BAD DEBT EXPENSE

CONSERVATION

Total Expenses

Income (Loss) from Operations

ELECTIONS

DIRECTORS TRAVEL/EDUCATION

SECURITY

POSTAGE

ATTACHMENT 3C

Agenda Packet - Page 13 of 96



As of 8/31/2023

Balance Sheet

Ventura River Water District10/12/23
4:18:36 PM

Assets

 Current Assets

FUNDS IN COUNTY TREASURY $736,682.35

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 526,979.24

PETTY CASH 580.03

SECURITY DEPOSIT CHECKING 11,248.74

RABO6073 149,671.09

PRO-EQUITIES 912,444.15

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 329,259.32

TREASURY INTEREST RECEIVABLE 215.35

CMWD PENALTY RECEIVABLE 76.56

GRANTS RECEIVABLE 30,226.00

PREPAID SECURITY MONITORING & MAINT 308.00

PREPAID WEB SERVICES 148.35

PREPAID INSURANCE 74,444.56

PREPAID COMPUTER MAINTENANCE 15,941.66

PREPAID OTHER )(7,461.31

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 162,672.00

Total Current Assets A $2,943,436.09

 Property, Plant & Equipment

WATER SYSTEMS IMPROVEMENT $2,810,360.66

SCADA SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 59,597.10

DISTRICT 4 AND DISTRICT 7 118,245.00

WELLS 1,852,532.96

TANKS 1,412,845.83

PUMPS 277,620.38

METERS 79,791.94

TRUCKS 278,657.71

OFFICE AND SHOP EQUIPMENT 299,988.35

BUILDINGS 1,810,567.45

LAND,WATER & RIGHTS OF WAY 227,580.50

SCADA SYSTEM 37,541.85

BALDWIN EROSION PROTECTION 68,324.24

PIPELINES 2,905,339.00

COMPUTERS 1,810.14

RE-PLUMB ENCINO & THOMAS PRV VAULTS 33,783.75

WELL#3 & WELL#2 PUMP & PANEL REPLACEMENT 305,662.80

N. BALDWIN TANK REPAIR 11,204.91

SANTA ANA BLVD FIRE FLOW UPGRADE 21,700.50

TICO MUTUAL PROJECT 70,638.18

SRF WATER MAIN PROJECTS 409,720.94

SRF CONSTRUCTION POTHOLING 70,308.58

SRF SOLAR PROJECTS 105,445.07

REPLACE 2008 F-250 TRUCK 51,768.05

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION )(5,127,624.42

UPGRADE SCADA RADIOS 34,996.81

CASITAS SPRINGS EMERGENCY FIRE FLOW PUMP 15,825.75

GAIN/LOSS ON ASSET DISPOSAL 13,797.00

Total Property, Plant & Equipment A 8,258,031.03

Total Assets $11,201,467.12
A

Liabilities and Equity

 Current Liabilities

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $24,725.47

PTO PAYABLE 160,411.51

ATTACHMENT 3C

Agenda Packet - Page 14 of 96



As of 8/31/2023

Balance Sheet

Ventura River Water District10/12/23
4:18:36 PM

CONSTRUCTION DEPOSITS PAYABLE 3,471.25

SECURITY DEPOSIT PAYABLE 6,535.03

DEPOSIT PAYABL-SVC INSTALL/HYDRANT METER 250.00

TICO MUTUAL TRUST 51,832.53

FLIEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT )(489.08

DEPENDENT CARE 3,416.54

NET PENSION LIABILITY 203,443.00

DEFERRED INFLOWS 213,131.00

Total Current Liabilities A $666,727.25

Total Liabilities $666,727.25
A

 Equity

INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS $7,786,425.00

UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 2,569,865.92

Current Year Profit/Loss A 178,448.95

 

Total Equity 10,534,739.87A

Total Liabilities and Equity $11,201,467.12

ATTACHMENT 3C

Agenda Packet - Page 15 of 96



Water System Improvements
Account Fixed Asset 23/24 Budget YTD Remaining/(Over) Description/Status
13014 Well #6 Retaining Wall 30,000.00$    30,000.00$    Retaining wall, gravel pad at Well #6
13040 Mixing Valve South Alto Tank 25,000.00$    25,000.00$    Mixing valve for South Alto Tank to prevent thermostratification
13061 Well #2 & 3 Pump & Pannel Replacement 300,435.00$    300,435.00$    Pump & Panel Replacement ct'd
13105 Casitas Springs Emergency Fire Flow Pump 41,000$    41,000.00$     Finish pump design and specs, contract award to Phoenix Civil Engineering
13094 Tico Mutual Annexation Project 20,000$    4,215.00$    15,785.00$     LAFCo Application, Design Engineering, SRF Coordination
13098 SRF Water Main Projects , Planning for Environmental, Engr, Easemts 250,000$    422.50$    249,577.50$    Awarded to Phoenix = $658,000 (13098 & 13099), Potholing & Easements
13100 SRF Solar Projects , Planning for Environmental, Engr 31,000$    31,000.00$     Awarded to Phoenix = $114,227, Ventura Energy Baldwin & Parker Site Interconnection Agreement
13010 Hydrant & Valve Replacement Project 205,000$    205,000.00$    To be completed Fall 2023 pending funding
13110 SCADA Communication Alarm & Cla-Val for Emergency backfill of Parker 25,000$    25,000.00$     Development of Communciation failure alarm and intergration of 4" Cla-Val at Parker Site

Total 927,435$    4,638$     922,798$     
Auto Equipment
Account Fixed Asset 23/24 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status
N/A
Shop Equipment
Account Fixed Asset 23/24 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status
N/A
Office Equipment
Account Fixed Asset 23/24 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status
N/A

Summary 927,435.00$    4,637.50$    922,797.50$    

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT
Status of Capital Improvement Projects - FYE 2024

8/31/2023

ATTACHMENT 3C

Agenda Packet - Page 16 of 96



 

 
DATE: October 18, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G., Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: APPROVE PAYMENT FOR EMERGENCY SERVICES RENDERED TO 
REPAIR SCADA COMMUNICATION ISSUES 

 
SUMMARY 

Staff seeks approval for unbudgeted services rendered for emergency repairs to the 
SCADA system in the amount of $41,767.89. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

The Assistant General Manager recommends that the Board approve a budget transfer 
in the amount of $42,000 from our Operating Reserve account to cover services rendered 
in the amount of $41,767.89 to Northern Digital, Inc. 

 
BACKGROUND 

On July 17, 2023, our SCADA system experienced a critical failure with the 
communication system that prevented the pumping system from running automatically. 
Northern Digital, Inc. (NDI) was contacted to diagnose and rectify the issue. At the time, 
it was anticipated that the repair could be resolved quickly. Ultimately, locating the source 
of the failure was an iterative process that took two months to resolve.  

Various components of the SCADA system were replaced to isolate the issue with mixed 
results. On September 11, 2023, both Mitec* and Northern Digital were onsite to evaluate 
other potential causes while continuing to troubleshoot. 

On September 18, 2023, the surge protectors at the Parker and Alto facilities were 
replaced as they were thought to be causing interference. Once eliminated, the signal 
interference was also eliminated. At the Alto facility, one of the ethernet cables had two 
prongs crossed that were also interfering with the signal. No issues have been reported 
since then and system functionality has been restored. 

Throughout the system failure, field staff worked diligently after hours and on weekends 
to ensure water service to our customers without service disruptions. 

The total cost for NDI’s repairs including labor and materials amounts to $41,767.89. This 
is the amended amount after NDI took the initiative to lower and remove certain elements 
of the invoice they believe should have been initially covered by them. Additionally, NDI’s 
invoiced labor rates are based on their 2021 hourly rates as stipulated in their Services 
Agreement.  

 
* Mitec is the District’s IT consultant. 

Agenda Packet - Page 17 of 96



 
SCADA Repairs 
Page 2 of 2 

  
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This was an unbudgeted emergency repair. A budget transfer in the amount of $42,000 
is needed from our Operating Reserve account, which will increase the total budgeted 
amount in that account to $102,000. 
 
Invoices from Mitec for assistance in this effort total $1,848.76 from account #60019. 
 
The total cost of overtime incurred by staff is approximately $4,500. 
 
Attachments: 
 4A – Budget Transfer 
 4B – NDI invoices 

Agenda Packet - Page 18 of 96



FROM: Comments
OPERATING RESERVES $42,000

TO:
60019 Field Equipment Maintenance $42,000 Original Budget: $60,000, New: $102,000

Total $42,000

SCADA system communication failures 
required emergency repairs

IT IS HEREBY REQUESTED TO TRANSFER: 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT
BUDGET TRANSFER #1

October 18, 2023

EMERGENCY SCADA REPAIRS

FY 2023/24

ATTACHMENT 4A

Agenda Packet - Page 19 of 96



Invoice Number 057473

Invoice Date September 03, 2023

PO#/AFE#/Auth. #

Project         21263-00

Terms:

1 of 1

Bert J. Rapp, P.E. General Mgr

Ventura River Water District

409 Old Baldwin Road

Ojai, CA 93023

4701 Corporate Court

Bakersfield, CA 93311

Phone # 661-322-6044

Fax  # 661-322-1209

SOLD TO:

Page

Net 30 Days

Manager Robert Soto

Client # Bert Rapp

Contract #

(3) 1-port Industrial 60W BT

(3) Hirschmann Gecko 5TX Lite Managed Industrial Ethernet Rail

Project         Ventura River WD T&M Support

Description Units Rate Total

Jesse Gamboa  104.50  14,630.00 140.00

William Hubert  35.00  4,900.00 140.00

Mileage  975.00 0.75 1,300.00

Freight  105.74

Materials  2,566.24

Sales Tax  186.05

Invoice Total  23,363.03

All Past Due Invoices are Subject to 1 1/2% Interest Charge.  

All Returns must be made within 5 Working Days. 

No Returns on special Orders

ATTACHMENT 4B

Agenda Packet - Page 20 of 96



Invoice Attachment 057473

Project         21263-00

Page 1 of 3

Invoice Attachment

Ventura River Water District
  

Project         Ventura River WD T&M Support

Date Units Rate TotalDescription

Professional Services

Jesse Gamboa

5010511500 Onsite support. Troubleshoot SCADA radio 

communications.

  

8/1/2023  10.00  140.00  1,400.00

5010511500 Onsite support. Troubleshoot SCADA radio 

communications.

  

8/2/2023  10.00  140.00  1,400.00

5010511500 Setup and test spare radios for 

replacement at Well7 and Baldwin. Discuss 

alternate communication solutions with 

staff. Locate spare SCADAPack 334 for 

backup.

  

8/3/2023  6.00  140.00  840.00

5010511500 Remote support. Discuss radio 

communication issues with engineer staff. 

Discuss possible causes and ways to 

identify the root problem. Prepare for site 

visit to continue troubleshooting radio 

communications.  

8/8/2023  6.00  140.00  840.00

5010511500 Onsite visit. Troubleshoot possible 

Cambium SCADA radio communication 

interference.  

8/9/2023  8.00  140.00  1,120.00

5010511500 Onsite visit. Troubleshoot possible 

Cambium SCADA radio communication 

interference.  

8/10/2023  8.00  140.00  1,120.00

5010511500 Remote Support. Troubleshoot Cambium 

SCADA radios and possible cause of 

ethernet port lockup on SCADApak PLC.

Status report development and review.  

8/11/2023  6.00  140.00  840.00

5010511500 Monitor and analyze communication issue 

for Parker Tank site. Research alternate 

solutions.

  

8/14/2023  6.00  140.00  840.00

5010511500 Monitor and analyze communication issue 

for Parker Tank site.

  

8/17/2023  2.00  140.00  280.00

5010511500 Hardware preparation for site visit to 

troubleshoot Parker PLC comms.

  

8/21/2023  4.00  140.00  560.00

5010511500 Hardware preparation for site visit to 

troubleshoot Parker PLC comms.  

8/22/2023  4.00  140.00  560.00

ATTACHMENT 4B

Agenda Packet - Page 21 of 96



Page

Project         21263-00

Invoice Attachment 057473

2 of 3Ventura River Water District

5010511500 Site visit. Troubleshooting Parker PLC 

communication dropout. Alto Site - 

installation of 24v POE and Gecko smart 

switch. Well 7 - Installation of Gecko smart 

switch. Baldwin - Installation of Gecko 

Smart switch. Parker - Installation of 

Hirschmann Rail2 0 smart switch and 

Wireshark monitor of communications to 

assist analyzing communication lockup. 

8/23/2023  9.00  140.00  1,260.00

5010511500 Remote support - troubleshoot and monitor 

Parker PLC communications.

  

8/24/2023  2.00  140.00  280.00

5010511500 Remote support - troubleshoot and monitor 

Parker PLC communications. Review 

alternate communication solutions.

  

8/25/2023  2.00  140.00  280.00

5010511500 Preparation of SCADA smart switches and 

network mockup for troubleshooting 

communication issue on SCADA network.  

8/29/2023  4.00  140.00  560.00

5010511500 Onsite support. Install Hirschman smart 

switches at all sites. Test communication 

alarmin in PLC. Discuss network topology 

with IT person Jake.

  

8/30/2023  9.50  140.00  1,330.00

5010511500 Remote support. Mockup and testing of 

communication alarms in ClearSCADA.  

8/31/2023  4.00  140.00  560.00

5010511500 Program and test communication alarms 

for all sites.  

9/1/2023  4.00  140.00  560.00

William Hubert

5010511500 Provided technical support while 

troubleshooting radio communication 

issues.  

8/1/2023  10.00  140.00  1,400.00

5010511500 Onsite radio communications 

trouibleshooting and testing.  

8/10/2023  8.00  140.00  1,120.00

5010511500 Technical discussion with engineering on 

communication message structure and 

path forward on communications 

messaging improvements.  

8/11/2023  4.00  140.00  560.00

5010511500 Onsite radio communications and 

troubleshooting.  

8/23/2023  4.00  140.00  560.00

5020525500 Installed POE for Alto to run on batteries, 

installed managed switch at Parker to 

monitor communications diagnostics.  

8/24/2023  4.00  0.00  0.00

5010511500 Replaced 4 network switches and tested 

Communication fail logic. Replaced with 

managed switches to improve network 

management and our ability to 

troubleshoot. 

  

8/30/2023  9.00  140.00  1,260.00

ATTACHMENT 4B

Agenda Packet - Page 22 of 96



Page

Project         21263-00

Invoice Attachment 057473

3 of 3Ventura River Water District

5010511500 Completed programming and testing 

communication alarms, added alarms to 

Scada and attempted to program 911 

system, 911 system access needs 

approved to complete

  

9/1/2023  4.00  0.00  0.00

Professional Services  19,530.00Subtotal

Mileage  975.00 0.75 1,300.00

Freight  105.74

Materials  2,566.24

Sales Tax  186.05

Total Project         Ventura River WD T&M Support  23,363.03

ATTACHMENT 4B

Agenda Packet - Page 23 of 96



Invoice Number 057476

Invoice Date September 03, 2023

PO#/AFE#/Auth. #

Project         21263-00

Terms:

1 of 1

Bert J. Rapp, P.E. General Mgr

Ventura River Water District

409 Old Baldwin Road

Ojai, CA 93023

4701 Corporate Court

Bakersfield, CA 93311

Phone # 661-322-6044

Fax  # 661-322-1209

SOLD TO:

Page

Net 30 Days

Manager Robert Soto

Client # Bert Rapp

Contract #

(4) UPS with 8 Outlets

(2) Ethernet Switch, 5 Port, 12 to 24 VDC

(3) CAM UL Power Supply Cord Set, 720mm, US

(1) CAM Power Supply, 30W, 56V-Gbps Support

(2) CAM PoE Gigabit DC Inj, 15W, EnergyLevel 6

Project         Ventura River WD T&M Support

Description Units Rate Total

Jesse Gamboa  31.00  4,340.00 140.00

William Hubert  18.00  2,520.00 140.00

Mileage  585.00 0.75 780.00

Freight  48.06

Materials  743.19

Sales Tax  53.88

Invoice Total  8,290.13

All Past Due Invoices are Subject to 1 1/2% Interest Charge.  

All Returns must be made within 5 Working Days. 

No Returns on special Orders

ATTACHMENT 4B

Agenda Packet - Page 24 of 96



Invoice Attachment 057476

Project         21263-00

Page 1 of 2

Invoice Attachment

Ventura River Water District
  

Project         Ventura River WD T&M Support

Date Units Rate TotalDescription

Professional Services

Jesse Gamboa

5010511500 Site visit for emergency call out. 

Troubleshoot radio communications to 

Well7 from Baldwin Booster. Installed 

battery backup units for Well7, Baldwin, Alto 

and Parker radios.  

7/19/2023  10.00  140.00  1,400.00

5010511500 Site visit to troubleshoot Baldwin to Well 7 

comms. Bad switches at Baldwin tank and 

well 7.  

7/21/2023  8.00  140.00  1,120.00

5010511500 Remote support to troubleshoot comms to 

Parker. Possible bad switch.  

7/24/2023  4.00  140.00  560.00

5010511500 Site visit to troubleshoot Parker 

communications. Possible bad switch. Bad 

POE injector. Troubleshoot and 

re-established comms with Cambium 

radios between Baldwin and Well 7.  

7/25/2023  9.00  140.00  1,260.00

5010511500 Remote support. Monitor SCADA system 

communications. Acquisition of POE 

replacements and backups and industrial 

switch replacements.  

7/26/2023  3.00  0.00  0.00

5010511500 Remote support. Monitor SCADA system 

communications. Research 48-56V 

(30watts) POE to work on 24 v battery 

system. Research SCADA communication 

alarm options.  

7/27/2023  2.00  0.00  0.00

William Hubert

5010511500 Troubleshot issues with blown fuses, Alto 

relay not reported not working and 

communication issues with Well 7 not 

talking to Scada main. The communication 

issue was caused by faulty E-Net switch, 

replaced with temporary switch. Replaced 

fuses with proper size at Baldwin PLC. 

Installed back-up UPS at radio sites and 

tested by removing 120 Vac circuit and 

verify the communication and PLC stayed 

powered. 

7/19/2023  10.00  140.00  1,400.00

5010511500 Issues with Well 7 communications. looks 

like existing switch in Baldwin PLC panel 

was locked up. Replaced switch and will 

monitor throughout weekend.  

7/21/2023  8.00  140.00  1,120.00

Professional Services  6,860.00Subtotal

ATTACHMENT 4B

Agenda Packet - Page 25 of 96



Invoice Number 057514

Invoice Date October 01, 2023

PO#/AFE#/Auth. #

Project         21263-00

Terms:

1 of 1

Bert J. Rapp, P.E. General Mgr

Ventura River Water District

409 Old Baldwin Road

Ojai, CA 93023

4701 Corporate Court
Bakersfield, CA 93311
Phone # 661-322-6044
Fax  # 661-322-1209

SOLD TO:

Page

Net 30 Days

Manager Robert Soto

Client # Bert Rapp

Contract #

(1) Hirschmann Gecko 5TX Lite Managed Industrial Ethernet Rail

Project         Ventura River WD T&M Support

Description Units Rate Total

Jesse Gamboa 46.00 6,440.00140.00
William Hubert 21.00 2,940.00140.00

Mileage 195.000.75260.00

Freight 22.05
Materials 481.75

Sales Tax 34.93

Invoice Total 10,113.73

All Past Due Invoices are Subject to 1 1/2% Interest Charge.  
All Returns must be made within 5 Working Days. 
No Returns on special Orders

ATTACHMENT 4B

Agenda Packet - Page 26 of 96



Invoice Attachment 057514

Project         21263-00

Page 1 of 2

Invoice Attachment

Ventura River Water District

Project         Ventura River WD T&M Support

Date Units Rate TotalDescription

Professional Services

Jesse Gamboa

5010511500 Remote support. Troubleshoot possible 

broadcasting on network. Identifying SCADA 
network devices.

9/5/2023 8.00 140.00 1,120.00

5010511500 Remote support. Troubleshoot possible 

broadcasting on network. Identifying SCADA 
network devices.

9/6/2023 6.00 140.00 840.00

5010511500 Remote support. Troubleshoot possible 

broadcasting on network. Identifying SCADA 
network devices.

9/7/2023 4.00 140.00 560.00

5010511500 Remote support. Troubleshoot possible 

broadcasting on network. Identifying SCADA 
network devices.

9/8/2023 3.00 140.00 420.00

5010511500 Site visit. Assist IT with troubleshooting and 

segmenting network.

9/11/2023 8.00 140.00 1,120.00

5010511500 Remote support. Collaboration with IT in 

troubleshooting networking port lockups.

9/12/2023 4.00 140.00 560.00

5010511500 Remote support. Collaboration with IT in 

troubleshooting networking port lockups.

9/13/2023 2.00 140.00 280.00

5010511500 Remote support. Collaboration with IT in 

troubleshooting networking port lockups.

9/14/2023 3.00 140.00 420.00

5010511500 Remote support. Collaboration with IT in 

troubleshooting networking port lockups.
Research why issue keeps migrating on 

network.

9/15/2023 2.00 140.00 280.00

5010511500 Remote support. Assist troubleshoot 

ethernet network performance on port 
lockups. Monitor system.

9/18/2023 2.00 140.00 280.00

5010511500 Remote support. Assist troubleshoot 

ethernet network performance on port 
lockups. Monitor system.

9/19/2023 2.00 140.00 280.00

5010511500 Remote support. Assist troubleshoot 

ethernet network performance on port 
lockups. Monitor system.

Collaboration with Ryan for update on 

network performance.

9/21/2023 1.00 140.00 140.00

5010511500 Remote support. Discuss findings with 

Ryan the IT consultant.

9/25/2023 1.00 140.00 140.00

ATTACHMENT 4B

Agenda Packet - Page 27 of 96



Page

Project         21263-00

Invoice Attachment 057514

2 of 2Ventura River Water District

William Hubert

5010511500 Online troubleshooting and researching 

Communication issue, Called Tech Support 
and log Case # 103833056

9/5/2023 5.00 140.00 700.00

5010511500 Tech Support identified communication 

issues with older Versions of Telepace 
software. Requested to change how the 

MSIP routine gets called and to add a 

dynamic IP diagnostic tool. Added the 

calling routine and downloaded. The 

communications crashed. Loa ded 
back-up and then changed the order of 
called routines. Testing the changes.

9/6/2023 4.00 140.00 560.00

5020525500 Meeting with Joseph, Ventura Management 

and Engineering to discuss Baldwin, Parker 
upgrades.

9/18/2023 1.00 140.00 140.00

5020525500 Panel Testing and wiring corrections 9/21/2023 8.00 140.00 1,120.00

5020525500 Powered up second PLC and flashed up 

processor, loaded program and set I/P. 
Troubleshot issue with 12 VDC battery 

charging issue.

9/22/2023 3.00 140.00 420.00

Professional Services 9,380.00Subtotal

Mileage 195.000.75260.00

Freight 22.05
Materials 481.75

Sales Tax 34.93

Total Project         Ventura River WD T&M Support 10,113.73

ATTACHMENT 4B

Agenda Packet - Page 28 of 96



Page

Project         21263-00

Invoice Attachment 057476

2 of 2Ventura River Water District

Mileage  585.00 0.75 780.00

Freight  48.06

Materials  743.19

Sales Tax  53.88

Total Project         Ventura River WD T&M Support  8,290.13

ATTACHMENT 4B

Agenda Packet - Page 29 of 96



 

 
DATE: October 18, 2023  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G. Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: GOALS UPDATE 
 
SUMMARY 
An update on the 2023/24 Goals is attached. The goals are used to guide the preparation 
of the budget for the next fiscal year and scheduling staff activities. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Assistant General Manager recommends that the Board: 

1. Review and comment on the Goals.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Each year a set of goals are compiled to guide the preparation of the budget for the next 
fiscal year and scheduling of staff activities. The last update to the goals was presented 
on March 15, 2023. Several of the goals presented are still in progress with measurable 
headway being made toward completion. Other goals have been completed since the last 
update and others are open-ended activities specifically aligned with the District’s 
adopted values.  
 
The updated summary of goals highlights the items that have been completed, are in 
progress and/or open-ended. 
 
FISCAL SUMMARY 
The financial impact of the Goals is captured in the 10-Year Capital Improvement 
Program and in District’s Budget.  
 

Agenda Packet - Page 30 of 96



2023/24 Goals
GOAL DESCRIPTION

Prepare environmental analysis for 2023 

Water Projects

An Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) was prepared and 

posted for public comment. The comment period closed on February 3, 2023 

and a final IS/MND will be presented to the Board in March 2023 for 

adoption.

Retrofit mixing valve in North Alto Tank The mixing valves were retrofitted on March 2, 2023. 

Prepare water rates with drought stage 

schedules. 

Water rates for FYE 2024 and FYE 2025 were prepared and adopted by the 

Board on May 10, 2023.  Drought Stage schedules were not prepared due to 

the amount of rain received and Lake Casitas filling above 70%.

Interconnection Agreement with Edison 

to lock in 20‐year Edison rates

Ventura Energy, submitted the Interconnection Agreement Applications for 

the Baldwin and Parker facilities on February 17, 2023.
 The Baldwin and 

Parker sites have been approved for the NEM 2.0 schedule. 

Deadline to bring solar online is March 2026. The electric meters have been 

retrofitted in anticipation of solar panel installation.

Tico Annexation

CEQA process complete and adopted by the Board on March 15, 2023. 

Application for the DWR Grant was submitted and the preliminary award 

letter has been received for $3.3 Million. The LAFCo application was 

submitted in May and the hearing is scheduled for November 15, 2023.

Casitas Mutual Water Annexation

Casitas Mutual shareholders voted to consolidate with Ventura River Water 

District. Casitas Mutual and VRWD have executed a Consolidation agreement 

and are working with the State and the State's assigned consultant (NV5) to 

prepare engineering plans and many of the necessary filings to consolidate.

Prepare for General Manager's 

retirement in December 2023.

Training of new Assistant General Manager on District operations & 

assistance with 2023 Water Projects has been underway. At the September 

Board meeting, the Board announced that the Assistant General Manager 

would be appointed as the next General Manager.

Install solar facilities by 2026 to lock in 

20‐year Edison rate benefits

Feasibility Study completed and approved by the Board. New Infrastructure 

Act will provide VRWD possible 40% funding. Staff is working on identifying 

funding opportunities.

Prepare Plans and Specifications for 

2023 Water Projects

The plans and specifications for the 2023 Water Projects are currently 60% 

complete and under review by the State. They will be refined after feedback 

is received.
Water System Master Plan:

Add operational requirements such as 

pressure settings, purpose for special 

Add trigger point for Fire pump in Casitas Springs. Pressure Relief settings at 

Parker for Well #6.

Public education and outreach with 

monthly e‐mail updates, bill inserts: 

January, April, July, and October. 

Monthly emails are working well staff has expanded the email list to include 

all customers for whom the District has an email address.  Bill inserts will be 

used more frequently going forward.

Water conservation education and 

implementation.

Educate customers about low water landscaping and irrigation, grey water 

systems and rain water capture.  The District is working with Watershed 

Progressive to use grant funds for site assessments of the District's 

customers. An application was also submitted for funding to install drought 

tolerant landscapes.

Regularly meet with the General 

Managers of Casitas and Meiners Oaks 

Water Districts to improve collaboration. 

Staff met with Meiners Oaks to discuss emergency protocols during 

catastrophic events.  Additional meetings are planned that can hopefully 

include Casitas.  

O
p
e
n
‐E
n
d
e
d

In
 P
ro
gr
e
ss

C
o
m
p
le
te

Agenda Packet - Page 31 of 96



 

 
DATE: October 18, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G., Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 2023- 360: UPDATE RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
SUMMARY 

This report recommends modifications to the Rules and Regulations.  

Staff proposes to bifurcate the District’s financial sections from the Rules and Regulations 
and assemble them in a separate documents titled “Financial Policies & Guidelines and 
“Rules and Regulations for Water Service” No changes to any of the financial policies are 
proposed, only a separation of policies for customers and the District’s financial policies 
and clarifying language in the revised Rules and Regulations for Water Service. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

The Assistant General Manager recommends that the Board take the following actions: 

1. Approve Resolution 2023-360 to separate the District’s Financial Policies from the 
Rules and Regulations and rename the Rules and Regulations: Rules and 
Regulations for Water Service; and, 

2. Approve the minor edits to the revised Rules and Regulations for Water Service; 
and, 

3. Approve the relocation of Section 38 from the Rules and Regulations for Water 
Service to Section 3107 of the Personnel Policies. 

 
BACKGROUND 

Currently, the District’s financial policies are integrated into the District’s Rules and 
Regulations. Staff proposes to cleave the District’s financial sections from the Rules and 
Regulations and assemble them in a separate document titled “Financial Policies & 
Guidelines.” Clarifying language to the revised “Rules and Regulations for Water Service” 
has been incorporated and presented in redline format. No changes to any of the financial 
policies are proposed. 

The Rules and Regulations for Water Service are designed to ensure equitable treatment 
for all customers. Separating the financial policies will provide the key benefits as outlined 
below. 

1. Transparency: Separating the financial policies from the Rules & Regulations will 
increase transparency for our customers. Having a standalone document 
dedicated to billing, payment, fee structure, and other matters related to water 
delivery will enable our customers to understand their financial obligations and 

Agenda Packet - Page 32 of 96



Resolution 2023-360: Update R&R 
Page 2 of 2 

rights more easily. Customers often refer to the Rules and Regulations to 
understand their responsibilities. Separating these water delivery rules will make it 
easier for customers to find specific information. 

2. Enhanced Clarity and Accessibility: By separating the financial policies, we can 
improve the clarity of these critical policies and guidelines. Financial policies often 
involve complex concepts and procedures that require detailed attention. By 
presenting them as a separate document, we can provide a more focused resource 
for our Board and staff. This separation will enable us to clearly communicate our 
financial policies and guidelines ensuring greater compliance and reduce the risk 
of misinterpretation.  

3. Customized Updates & Revisions: Separating the financial policies from the Rules 
and Regulations will provide us with greater flexibility and adaptability as the 
financial landscape evolves. The District may need to update or revise certain 
policies to meet regulatory requirements or internal needs. By having a dedicated 
financial policies document, we can easily modify and update these policies. 

Staff recommends the Board approve the separation of the financial policies from the 
Rules and Regulations for Water Service. This change will align the District with industry 
best practices. 

General Manager Comments 
Moving Section 38 USE OF DISTRICT EQUIPMENT, to the personnel policy is an 
appropriate recommendation. 
 
Changing from Rules and Regulations to two individual documents: In about 2013 when 
the District added a purchasing policy, contracting procedures, investment & reserve 
policies, etc. it was determined to change the “Rules and Regulations for Water Service” 
to “Rules and Regulations” to keep all of the rules and policies in one document.   
 
Having separate documents instead of separate articles in one document are both 
reasonable and workable approaches. Making future updates and revisions are identical 
processes with either approach. Both approaches provide equal transparency and 
accessibility. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 

No significant impact is anticipated related to the proposed changes.  
 
Attachments: 
 6A – Resolution 2023-360 
 6B – Revised Rules and Regulations for Water Service 
 6C – Financial Policies & Guidelines 
 6D – Addition to Personnel Policy 

Agenda Packet - Page 33 of 96



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT  

RESOLUTION 2023 – 360 

APPROVING REVISIONS TO RULES AND REGULATIONS 

WHEREAS, the VRWD Board of Directors has established standard procedures for the delivery 
of water service entitled Rules and Regulations for Water Service; and, 

WHEREAS, the Rules and Regulations for Water Service are in place to ensure equitable 
treatment to all customers; and, 

WHEREAS, the Rules and Regulations for Water Service is a commonly referenced document 
for customers to understand their responsibilities in receiving water service, and; 

WHEREAS, separating the Financial Policies & Guidelines from the Rules and Regulations for 
Water services will increase transparency for customers to understand their responsibilities in receiving 
water service. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Ventura River Water 
District hereby adopts the revised edition of the Rules and Regulations for Water Service dated October 
18, 2023. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of October 2023. 

CERTIFICATION I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the 
Board of Directors of the Ventura River Water District at the meeting held on October 18, 2023, motion by 
__________________________ and seconded by _________________________, motion passed by the 
following vote:  

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT: Attest: 

______________________________  ______________________________ 
Ed Lee, President Bert J. Rapp, Secretary/Clerk 

ATTACHMENT 6A

Agenda Packet - Page 34 of 96



October 18July 19, 2023

RULES & REGULATIONS 
FOR WATER SERVICE  

409 OLD BALDWIN ROAD 
OJAI, CALIFORNIA 93023 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 35 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 1 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

TABLE OF CONTENTS   
1. GENERAL ...................................................................................................................................... 32 
2. DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................................................ 32 
3. AREA SERVED AND ANNEXATIONS INTO THE DISTRICT ...................................................... 42 
4. ARRANGEMENTS FOR REGULAR WATER SERVICE ............................................................... 43 
5. OWNERSHIP OF FACILITIES ....................................................................................................... 65 
6. TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE ................................................................................................. 75 
7. PRIVATE FIRE SERVICE .............................................................................................................. 86 
8. WATER WASTE PROHIBITIONS ................................................................................................. 86 
9. WATER RATES ......................................................................................................................... 1110 
10. BILLING AND COLLECTION CHARGES .................................................................................. 1211 
11. HEARING FOR DELINQUENT AND DISPUTED BILLS ........................................................... 1413 
12. CUSTOMER REQUESTED DISCONTINUANCE & RESTORATION OF SERVICE ................ 1514 
13. METER TESTS .......................................................................................................................... 1514 
14. DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES ..................................................................................................... 1514 
15. WATER SUPPLY AND INTERRUPTION OF DELIVERY ......................................................... 1615 
16. VRWD EQUIPMENT ON CUSTOMER'S PREMISES ............................................................... 1716 
17. RESPONSIBILITY FOR WATER RECEIVING EQUIPMENT ................................................... 1716 
18. PROTECTION OF PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY .......................................................................... 1817 
19. DAMAGE OF VRWD FACILITIES AND THEFT OF WATER .................................................... 1918 
20. WILL SERVE AND WATER AVAILABILITY LETTERS ............................................................. 1918 
21. MASTER METER FOR ASSOCIATION .................................................................................... 2120 
22. SUBDIVISION - FIVE OR MORE PARCELS ............................................................................. 2120 
23. DISREGARD OF RULES & REGULATIONS OF WATER SERVICE ....................................... 2120 
24. MINOR DISAGREEMENTS ....................................................................................................... 2221 
25. HEARINGS ................................................................................................................................ 2221 
26. SPECIAL BOARD MEETINGS .................................................................................................. 2221 
27. ATTORNEYS' FEES .................................................................................................................. 2221 

Error! Hyperlink reference not valid.28. ............. PURCHASE OF MATERIALS, SUPPLIES AND 
SERVICES ................................................................................................................................. 2221 

Error! Hyperlink reference not valid.29. .................................................................. PETTY CASH 
FUND 2322 

Error! Hyperlink reference not valid.30. ............ CONTRACTING, BIDDING AND PURCHASING 
REQUIREMENTS ...................................................................................................................... 2322 

Error! Hyperlink reference not valid.31. .................................................................. INVESTMENT 
POLICY ...................................................................................................................................... 2524 

Error! Hyperlink reference not valid.32. ........................................................................ RESERVE 

POLICY ...................................................................................................................................... 2524 

Error! Hyperlink reference not valid.33. .................................. COLLECTION AND DEPOSIT OF 

REVENUES ............................................................................................................................... 2524 

Error! Hyperlink reference not 
valid.34. ............................................................................................................ DISBURSEMENTS
 2625 

Error! Hyperlink reference not valid.35. ............................................... DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS 
PROPERTY ............................................................................................................................... 2625 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 36 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 2 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

Error! Hyperlink reference not valid.36. .................................................................. FIXED ASSET 
POLICY ...................................................................................................................................... 2827 

Error! Hyperlink reference not valid.37. ......................................................... REIMBURSEMENT 
DISCLOSURES ......................................................................................................................... 2928 

Error! Hyperlink reference not valid.38. .......................................................... USE OF DISTRICT 

EQUIPMENT .............................................................................................................................. 2928 
2839. LEAK RELIEF ............................................................................................................................ 2928 

Error! Hyperlink reference not valid.40. ....................................................RECORD RETENTION 
POLICY ...................................................................................................................................... 3029 

2941. EFFECTIVE DATE ..................................................................................................................... 3130 
APPENDIX I  ...................................................................................................................................... 3231 
APPENDIX II  ...................................................................................................................................... 3534 
APPENDIX III  ...................................................................................................................................... 3635 
AMENDMENTS & ADDITIONS…………………………………………………………………………...………28 
Error! Hyperlink reference not valid.APPENDIX 

IV  ...................................................................................................................................... 3736 
  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 37 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 3 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 
1 GENERAL 
This document shall be known as "Rules and Regulations for Water Service" for the 
Ventura River Water District.  Unless otherwise approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Ventura River Water District, all water service shall be made in accordance with these 
rules and regulations. The Board of Directors may amend these rules and regulations at 
any regular or special meeting by Resolution or Ordinance. 
 
2 DEFINITIONS 
Whenever the words defined in this article occur in these rules and regulations, they 
shall have the meaning herein defined: 
 
2.1 "Additional dwelling" shall mean a secondary dwelling unit with complete independent 

living facilities for one or more persons and generally takes three forms: (1) Detached: 
the unit is separated from the primary residential structure, (2) Attached: the unit is 
attached to the primary residential structure, or (3) Repurposed Existing Space: Space 
(e.g., master bedroom or garage) within the primary residence is converted into an 
independent living unit. any structure used for living purposes, including mobile home, 
trailer, apartment, single family home, duplex, granny flat (if a separate structure), 
condominium, and/or any other similar dwelling. 

2.2 "Association" shall mean a corporation or association created to own,  or improve,  or 
lease lots or to provide management, maintenance or improvement of contiguous or 
non-contiguous lots. 

2.3 "Board" shall mean the Board of Directors of the Ventura River County Water District. 
2.4 “Commercial” shall mean any commercial or industrial development operating on land 

zoned for commercial or industrial uses. 
2.42.5 “Customer-owned Facility” shall mean all the pipes, valves, fittings, pressure 

regulators and all other appurtenances the service lateral facilities after the VRWD 
water meter.   

2.52.6 "District" shall mean Ventura River Water District. 
2.62.7 “Field Service Charge” shall mean the charge applied when a check is returned for 

Not Sufficient Funds and a door hanger notice must be made or water must be turned 
off when the payment of the water bill is delinquent by more than 10 days in accordance 
with Appendix I - Rates and Fees Schedule. 

2.72.8 "General Manager" shall mean the person holding the position or acting in the capacity 
of General Manager of Ventura River Water District. 

2.82.9 “LAFCo” shall mean the Ventura County Local Agency Formation Commission.   
2.92.10 "Multi-Family Residential” shall mean any apartment or mobile home 

development with one or more meters designed to supply water to five (5) or more 
dwellings on the same parcel. 

2.102.11 “Single Family Residential” shall mean a residential property with from one (1) 
to four (4) dwellings on the same parcel. 

2.112.12 "Service" shall mean the furnishing of water to a customer through a connection 
to facilities of the VRWD. 

2.122.13 "Service Facilities" shall mean the service lateral facilities between VRWD 
water main and the outlet of the meter. 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 38 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 4 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

2.132.14 “Unit” shall mean 748 gallons or 100 cubic feet of water. 
2.142.15 "Water Agency" shall mean and include public water agencies and, public 

water utilities, and mutual water companies. 
2.152.16 “Will Serve Letter” shall mean a letter issued by the Ventura River Water District 

committing to provide water service to a new customer. 
2.162.17 "VRWD" shall mean the Ventura River Water District. 
 
3 AREA SERVED AND ANNEXATIONS INTO THE DISTRICT 
The rules and regulations set forth herein pertain to service to land and/or 
improvements lying within the boundaries of VRWD.  The Board on an individual basis 
may establish Service to parcels outside VRWD boundaries after approval from LAFCo. 
 
3.1 Approval of annexations in to or out of VRWD shall be at the pleasure of the Board and 

be approved by LAFCo.  Annexation fees shall be the responsibility of the property 
owner(s) seeking annexation into or out of the District.  The fees shall include, but not 
be limited to, all fees incurred by LAFCo, the State of California, mapping fees, 
administration fees, and any and all other fees related to the annexation process 
imposed by VRWD or other agencies.  (See Appendix I for current Fee Schedule for 
VRWD fees)  
No property owner shall annex only a portion of his or her whole contiguous parcel.  
Water shall not be acquired for a parcel that is annexed and then transported to a parcel 
outside of the District's boundaries.  
Water service outside VRWD boundaries shall be approved by LAFCo and be by 
special service agreement only.  This special service agreement will establish maximum 
rate of use, quantity to be purchased, duration of service and other matters pertinent to 
such service which are not covered by VRWD "Rules and Regulations".  The water rate 
for outside user water service shall be established by the Board for each such service 
at the rate plus a surcharge and shall be set forth in the special service agreement.  
Capital improvements for new services shall comply with Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations. Fee schedules in effect at the time of the District's final 
Resolution approving and ordering the annexation shall be paid in full before water 
service is inaugurated.  

 
4 ARRANGEMENTS FOR REGULAR WATER SERVICE 
 
4.1 APPLICATION FOR WATER SERVICE.  Application for service shall be made in writing 

on a form available at the Ventura River Water District Office.  The General Manager or 
his appointee may approve applications for service.  All Applications for service shall 
be considered to be a written request for water and other services.  

 
4.1.1 REGULAR WATER SERVICE.  Regular water service to each property and 

additional dwelling shall be through separate pipes and water meters, except as 
provided herein. Water service for multi-family apartments and mobile home 
parks may be provided by a single meter to the facility.  Water service to an 
association shall be in accordance with Section 21 MASTER METER FOR 
ASSOCIATION.  All rates, fees, and provisions for multi-family residential 
development and associated service shall conform to the applicable portions of 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 39 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 5 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

these "Rules and Regulations".  The water rate shall be at the rates provided for 
in Appendix I. 

4.1.2 ADDITIONAL DWELLING UNITS.   Existing, detached and permitted additional 
dwellings that do not have a separate water meter shall not be required to install 
a separate water meter.  Existing, illegal unpermitted and detached additional 
dwelling units that do not have a separate water meter shall be required to install 
a separate water meter. If a new, attached Additional Dwelling unit is created by 
remodeling an existing dwelling a new separate water meter shall not be 
required.  New and detached Additional Dwelling Units built as a separate 
structure shall install have a separate water service and meter to the main unless 
the water pressure serving the property is 70 psi or higher, or, the service lateral 
from the main (System-owned facility) is at least 1” and, will serve no more than 
two total dwellings and is waived in writing by the General Manager.  

 
4.2 ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF CREDIT. 

4.2.1 DEPOSITS.  New Customers are required to provide proof of credit worthiness 
to the District in the form of pictured identification, a major credit card, prior Water 
Company or other verifiable credit reference. Connection of service may be 
delayed until the determination of credit worthiness has been made.  Customers 
may avoid this credit check by providing a voluntary refundable security deposit. 
In the event a customer who was deemed credit worthy at time of sign up does 
not maintain credit to the satisfaction of VRWD, a security deposit may be 
required after two late notices in any 12-month period. Customers not deemed 
credit worthy are required to provide a security deposit to guarantee payment of 
the customer's obligations to VRWD until his good credit has been established 
to the satisfaction of VRWD.  If the customer is a water agency, credit shall be 
deemed established. 
A customer's credit shall be considered established and maintained to the 
satisfaction of VRWD if the customer has not received a late notice during the 
prior 18 months.  When a customer has established and maintained credit to the 
satisfaction of VRWD, the customer's deposit, without interest, will be applied to 
the customer’s account as a credit.  If the deposit is applied to a closing bill and 
the balance is less than $10.00 a refund will only be made if specifically 
requested.  In the event the customer does not continue to maintain credit to the 
satisfaction of VRWD after the deposit has been refunded, the full deposit will 
again be required in order to continue water service.  If service has been 
discontinued for nonpayment, the General Manager may levy an additional 
deposit.  Deposits shall be made according to the current schedule of rates 
available at the District Office.  (See Appendix I - Rates and Fees Schedule). 

4.2.2 OUTSTANDING OBLIGATIONS. Payment in full of any outstanding obligation in 
connection with VRWD water service must be paid before water service can be 
restored to an existing location or to a present customer at a new location. 

4.3 SERVICE AND FACILITY INSTALLATION.  Where the conditions of service require 
Special Facilities, as determined by VRWD, the installation fee, regardless of the size 
of service, shall include all direct and indirect costs of furnishing and installing such 
Special Facilities.  Such Special Facilities may include, but are not limited to, turnout, 
heavy-duty pipeline, excess pipeline, trenching, installation of casing, and paving. 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 40 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 6 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

4.3.1 BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICES.  The Customer may be required to 
furnish and install a backflow device at his sole expense in compliance with the 
requirements as set forth in Section 18 of these “Rules and Regulations”. 

4.3.2 CAPACITY CHARGE.  A Capacity Charge shall be paid at the time an application 
for water service is made, in accordance with the current Capacity Charge 
Schedule.  (See Appendix II for Capacity Charge Schedule) 

4.4 PAYMENT OF INSTALLATION FEE.  The installation fee or estimated installation fee 
shall be paid in full at the time application is made for water service.  Any adjustment of 
the estimated installation fee shall be made when the service installation is completed. 

4.5 CHANGE IN SIZE OF SERVICE.  Changes in the size of water service shall conform 
with the following: 
4.5.1 Increase in size: Customers requesting an increase in the size of service shall 

make application to the District and pay any additional Capacity Charges for the 
size of service plus installation fees as provided for herein. (See Appendix II for 
Capacity Charge Schedule)  The increase in size of service shall be charged to 
the customer at actual direct and indirect costs, including but not limited to labor, 
parts, and administrative costs. 

4.5.2 Decrease in size:  Customers requesting a decrease in the size of service shall 
make application to the District and enter into an agreement with the District 
documenting that the customer may upsize the service back to the original size 
without paying an additional Capacity Charge.  The customer shall pay all costs 
associated with reducing the service size including direct and indirect costs, 
including but not limited to labor, parts, and administrative costs.  VRWD 
reserves the right to require the customer enlarge the service at any time that 
VRWD determines that the customer’s water demand necessitates a larger 
service. Refund of any of the original Capacity Charge due to a decrease in size 
shall not be allowed because those funds are invested in constructing the 
capacity of the infrastructure which cannot be reduced once constructed.    

4.6 RELOCATION OF EXISTING SERVICE FACILITIES.  When a change in the location 
of existing Service Facilities is deemed necessary by VRWD, such change in location 
shall be accomplished at VRWD’s expense.  When the relocation of existing Service 
Facilities is required as determined by VRWD, as a result of action taken by the 
customer or when such relocation is requested by the customer for his convenience, 
and upon approval by the General Manager, such relocation shall be accomplished at 
the customer's expense.  In either event, the cost of reconnecting the customers’ private 
plumbing system to the relocated VRWD-owned Service Facilities shall be at the 
customer's sole expense. 

4.7 SHUTOFF FOR NONCOMPLIANCE.  Water service may be shutoff for violation of or 
noncompliance with these "Rules and Regulations" and may be resumed only upon 
satisfactory evidence that violations have been corrected or those provisions of "Rules 
and Regulations" have been complied with. 

 
5 OWNERSHIP OF FACILITIES 
  
5.1 VRWD FACILITIES.  VRWD shall retain ownership of all meters, appurtenances and 

connection piping serving the meter regardless of who pays for or installs the facilities.  
The valve on the outlet side of the meter, pressure regulators, backflow prevention 
devices and other special facilities beyond the meter are owned by the customer and 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 41 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 7 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

their proper operation and maintenance are the responsibility of the customer.  VRWD 
regulations relating to assurances regarding proper operation of such special facilities 
are set forth in Section 18 of these "Rules and Regulations". 

5.2 CUSTOMER INSTALLED FACILITIES.  By special agreement, and with the consent of 
the General Manger, the customer may furnish and install all of the required Service 
Facilities at his sole expense, provided such installation is by a VRWD approved, 
licensed, and insured contractor.  Under such circumstances, the customer may be 
required to pay to VRWD the costs of legal services, engineering, plan check, 
inspection, and administration service, operation and maintenance shutdown costs, and 
other cost related items.  Such customer-installed facilities  between VRWD pipeline 
and the customer's side of the meter shall become the property of VRWD and shall 
thereafter be maintained by VRWD. 

 
6 TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE 

Application for temporary water service shall be made in writing on a form provided by 
VRWD. Temporary water service is intended primarily for construction and sanitary sewer 
flushing purposes and is provided via a hydrant meter or existing hard plumbed 
connection. Temporary water service may be provided for a maximum of six (6) months. 

6.1 INSTALLATION FEE OF TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE.  A meter installation fee 
shall be paid by the applicant at the time temporary water service is requested, providing 
service from nearest hydrant only.  (See Appendix I for Rates and Fees Schedule). 

6.2 TEMPORARY SERVICE RELOCATION FEES.  If a temporary water service requires 
service consecutively at two or more points in VRWD's system, a relocation fee shall 
be paid by the customer for each change of location.  Relocations will be made by 
VRWD upon 48-hour notice by the customer, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and 
holidays, (See Appendix I for Rates and Fees Schedule). 

6.3 GUARANTEE DEPOSIT.  The applicant shall be required to deposit funds as a 
guarantee of payment of charges for temporary water service and as a guarantee of 
payment for damage to VRWD property for which the customer is liable.  The deposit 
shall be in accordance with the current Rates and Fees Schedule. (See Appendix I for 
Rates And Fees Schedule) 

6.4 RETURNED CREDITS.  Returned credits not cashed after six (6) months shall be void, 
subject to customer appeal.  These funds will be transferred to the District's general 
income account. 

6.5 WATER SERVICE TO NEW SUBDIVISIONS.  Prior to receiving any water to a new 
subdivision, the developer must enter into an agreement to construct additions to the 
VRWD distribution system and pay applicable fees including current Capacity Charges. 
During construction, the developer may receive water from a temporary water meter 
connected to a fire hydrant, as described in Section 6.  Prior to acceptance of the new 
distribution facilities, by VRWD, the developer will take out an application, or have an 
application taken out, for each service in the subdivision. 

6.6 RESPONSIBILITY FOR TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE EQUIPMENT.  Customers 
using temporary water service equipment are fully responsible for the condition and 
safe return of the meters and material associated with the temporary service 
connection. 

 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 42 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 8 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

7 PRIVATE FIRE SERVICE 

7.1 APPLICATIONS FOR PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION FACILITIES.  VRWD may grant 
applications for private fire service or private fire hydrants.  Fire sprinkler service shall 
require a spring activated check valve on the fire sprinkler piping and shall be connected 
after the pressure regulator. A detector-check-type meter shall be required on all private 
fire service connections.  The customer, in accordance with plans previously approved 
by VRWD must install the required meter installation.  The customer will be required to 
install the appropriate backflow prevention device in accordance with the provisions set 
forth in Section 18 herein. 

7.2 FIRE STANDBY CHARGES FOR PRIVATE, COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL FIRE 
PROTECTION FACILITIES.  (See Appendix I for Rates and Fees Schedule) 

 
8 WATER WASTE PROHIBITIONS  
 
8.1 PROHIBITIONS 
No Ventura River Water District customer shall allow use of water for nonessential or 
unauthorized uses as defined herein: 

(1) General Waste: Indiscriminate running of water or washing using water which is 
wasteful and without reason or purpose. 

(2) Cleaning of Structures and Vehicles: The washing of building exteriors, mobile 
homes, cars, boats or recreational vehicles without the use of a positive shut-off 
nozzle on either the hose or pressure washer that causes it to cease dispensing 
water immediately when not in use.  

(3) Washing of Exterior Surfaces: The washing of hard or paved surfaces, including 
but not limited to sidewalks, walkways, driveways, parking areas, tennis courts, 
patios, streets or alleys, except when necessary to alleviate safety or sanitary 
hazards or when broom or other waterless device will not suffice. If necessary, 
washing may only be done with a bucket or similar container, a hose equipped with 
a positive shut-off nozzle, a pressure washer, a low-volume high pressure water 
efficient water broom, or a cleaning machine equipped to recycle the water used. 

(4) Plumbing Leaks: The escape of water through leaks, breaks, or malfunctions 
within the water user’s plumbing or distribution system, for a substantial period of 
time within which such break or leak should reasonably have been discovered and 
corrected. 

(5) Runoff Control: The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes in a 
manner that causes runoff such that water flows onto adjacent property, non-
irrigated areas, private and public walkways, roadways, parking lots, or structures. 

(6) Water Fountains: The use of potable water in a fountain or other decorative water 
feature except where the water is part of a recirculating system.  

(7) Watering Frequency: Outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with 
potable water no more frequently than two days per week.  

(8) Watering Times: Outdoor irrigation of ornamental landscapes or turf with potable 
water between the hours of 10:00 A.M. and 6:00 P.M. unless performed by a 
watering can or handheld sprayer nozzle. (Exceptions may be authorized by the 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 43 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 9 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

General Manager where there is no ability to not water between 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 
p.m.) 

(9) Continuously Running Water: any fixture that provides continuously running 
water shall be modified to stop flowing when not in use unless otherwise mandated 
by the Ventura County Health Department.  

(10) Cooling: Water used for all cooling purposes shall be re-circulated.  Single pass 
cooling systems shall be modified or taken out of service within 6 months of written 
notification from the District. 

8.2 EXEMPTED WATER USES 
 

a. All water use associated with the operation and maintenance of fire suppression 
equipment or employed by the District for water quality flushing and sanitation 
purposes shall be exempt from the provisions of this Section.   

b. Use of water supplied by gray water or rainwater collection system is also exempt; 
however, use of water from these systems is not exempt from the applicable 
regulations of the State and local jurisdictions governing the use of such water. 

c. Supervised testing, adjusting, or repairing of irrigation systems is allowed any time 
for no more than five (5) minutes per station. 

 
8.3 ENFORCEMENT OF VIOLATION 
 
Complaints of water waste will be investigated and enforced by the District in the form of 
a Notice of Violation.  The following officers and employees of the Ventura River Water 
District are hereby designated and authorized to issue citations for enforcement of this 
Section: General Manager, Utility Workers, Water employees designated by the General 
Manager 

8.4 NOTICE OF VIOLATION 
 
The notice to the District water customer of a violation of this Section will be issued by 
either mail, hand-delivery, or posting at the entrance of the violator’s premises. The 
District will issue a written notice that states the time, place, and general description of 
the violation or repeat of violation, as well as a time frame in which the violation must be 
corrected.  District staff may use discretion when determining the correction time. 
 
8.5 CONSEQUENCE OF VIOLATION 
 
Administrative fines and water service actions may be levied and applied for each 
violation of a provision of this Section as follows: 
 
Penalties for failure to comply with any provision of the Section are as follows: 

a. First Violation:  The District will issue a written notice to the water customer 
describing the violation, required compliance date and attach a copy of this 
Section. 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 44 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 10 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

b. Second Violation:  If the first violation is not corrected within the time frame 
specified by the District, or if a second violation occurs within the following twelve 
(12) months after the first violation notice, a second notice of violation will be issued 
and an administrative fine of one hundred dollars ($100) shall be levied for the 
second violation of this Section.   

c. Third Violation:  A third violation within the following twelve (12) months after the 
date of issuance of the second notice of violation is punishable by an administrative 
fine of two hundred dollars ($200). 

d. Fourth and Subsequent Violations:  Each day that a violation of this Section 
occurs beyond the remedy allowance provided in the third Notice of Violation is 
subject to any or all of the following penalties: 

i. Water service may be turned off or flow may be restricted.  Where water 
service is turned off or flow restricted, it shall be turned on or unrestricted 
upon correction of the violation and the payment of the reconnection 
charges, staff time, and District material purchases per the District’s Rules 
and Regulations in effect at the time. 

ii. A fine of not more than $500 may be imposed per day of continued violation.  
 
8.6 PAYMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE FINES 
The water customer is responsible for the full payment of administrative fines.  Each 
administrative fine shall be applied in the customer’s regular water billing.  Payment of 
the administrative fine will be the final responsibility of the individual named on the water 
account.  Non-payment of fines will be subject to the same remedies as non-payment of 
basic water rates, in accordance with the Ventura River Water District Rules and 
Regulations. The above fines shall be included in the next monthly water bill and must be 
paid in accordance with normal bill paying processes or the water service will be subject 
to turn off and appropriate field charge to reconnect at the current re-connection charge. 
Failure to make corrections or pay a charge within the allotted time may also result in 
restriction of service. 

8.7 APPEAL 
Any customer against whom an administrative fine or water service action is levied 
pursuant to this Section shall have the right to appeal as follows: 

(1) The appeal must be in writing, legible, and received by the General Manager within 
fifteen (15) calendar days of the issuance of the notice of violation to the customer.  
Any violation not timely appealed shall be deemed final.  The written request for 
appeal consideration shall include: 

i. A description of the issue, 
ii. Evidence supporting the appeal, and 
iii. A suggestion for resolution of the dispute, if any. 

(2) The General Manager will review the material submitted and make an independent 
determination of the issue, which shall be mailed to the customer within fifteen (15) 
calendar days of receipt of the request for appeal. 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 45 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 11 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

(3) The General Manager’s determination may be appealed in writing within fifteen 
(15) calendar days of the mailing of the notice of determination.  The appeal of the 
General Manager’s determination shall be heard and considered by the Board of 
Directors at an upcoming regular meeting of the Board.  Notice of the hearing shall 
be mailed to the customer at least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the date of 
the appeal hearing.  The Board may, in its discretion affirm, reverse, or modify the 
determination.  The Board’s determination is final. 

8.8 Ventura River Water District may order implementation of water conservation measures 
in addition to those set forth in this Section.  Nothing in this Section shall be construed 
to require the District to curtail the supply of water to any customer when such water is 
required by that customer to maintain an adequate level of public health and safety.  If 
any part of this Section or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is for 
any reason held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, the validity of the remainder 
of the Section or the application of such provision to other persons or circumstances 
shall not be affected. 

8.9 The provisions of this Section shall prevail in control in the event of any inconsistency 
between this Section and any other rule, regulation, ordinance, or Resolution of this 
District. 

 
9 WATER RATES 
All rates and fees will be established based on the type and capacity of service. 
9.1 CLASSES OF SERVICE.  For rate purposes, water service shall be divided into classes 

as follows: 
9.1.1 REGULAR SERVICE.  Regular service shall apply to services supplied with 

water which are not temporary and consists of Single Family Residential, 
Multifamily Residential and Commercial.  Any new service with a meter larger 
than one (1) inch shall require Board approval. 

9.1.2 TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE.  Temporary water service shall apply to those 
temporary service connections as outlined in the "Rules and Regulations" in 
Section 6. 

9.2 WATER RATES.  All customers are to be billed monthly for water consumption 
according to the current Rates and Fees Schedule.  (See Appendix I for Rates and Fees 
Schedule) 

9.3 MINIMUM BASE RATE. Each customer shall pay a minimum Base Rate for each billing 
period during which a service connection exists regardless if the service is turned on. 
(See Appendix I for Rates and Fees Schedule) 

9.4 NON-REGISTERING METERS.  Should any meter in service fail to register during any 
billing period or a portion thereof, the customer shall be billed for the estimated use of 
water during such period as determined by VRWD. 

9.5 WATER BUDGET PROGRAM. The District has established a Water Budget Program 
for Single Family Residential (SFR) customer class and assigned a monthly water 
budget for each SFR customer that includes a 10-unit Health and Safety budget per 
residence plus water needed for licensed child/adult/health care providers, livestock, 
irrigation, pools and arenas.  Customers may apply at any time for a Water Budget 
Modification using the form provided by the District.  Each month the General Manager 
shall compare the actual evapotranspiration (ET) rate with the average ET for that 
month and if found to be significantly different, the General Manger shall modify the ET 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 46 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 12 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

prior to calculating the water bills for that month.  During declared drought stages the 
water budget greater than the Health and Safety budget shall be reduced by the 
percentage required by the drought stage.  A customer may notify the District when a 
pool must be filled and the District will increase that month’s budget by the pool volume. 

 
10 BILLING AND COLLECTION CHARGES 

10.1 WATER BILLS.  Water bills are processed on the last day of the month or, if the last 
day of the month is a weekend or holiday, the following business day, but always dated 
as of the last day of the month. 
10.1.1 PROPERTY OWNER RESPONSIBILITY.  Bills for water service are the property 

owner's responsibility even if regularly paid by a renter or tenant.  If water bills 
associated with the property remain delinquent, the General Manager may 
institute action in any court of competent jurisdiction, to cause the delinquent 
amount to be added to and become a part of the annual tax levied upon the 
property in accordance with Section 72094 et seq. of the California Water Code, 
and/or take any other steps to effect collection for services rendered by VRWD, 
provided such actions are compliant with California Health and Safety Code 
Sections 116900 et seq. as may be amended.   

10.1.2 RENTERS.  All new account holders shall be the owner, manager, or operator 
of the property, unless owner and renter have signed authorization for bill to be 
in the renters name.  
If the owner, manager, or operator of a residential property is the customer of 
record, and the account has become delinquent, Residential service is subject 
to shutoff due to nonpayment (refer to Section 10.22 “Delinquency”), the 
occupant (also referred to as tenant or renter) of the serviced property has the 
right to appeal and become a customer, to whom the service will then be billed. 
The occupant will not be charged the delinquent amount provided that the 
occupant verifies that the delinquent account customer of record is or was the 
landlord, manager, or agent of the residential dwelling. Verification may include, 
but is not limited to, a lease or rental agreement, rent receipts, a government 
document indicating that the occupant is renting the property, or information 
disclosed pursuant to Section 1962 of the Civil Code. Any remaining delinquent 
amount from the previous customer account of record held by the owner, 
manager, or operator of the residential property will be subject to the terms 
under Section 10.226 “Remedies for Nonpayment.”  
If the renter closes their account, the account will revert back into the owner’s 
name and the owner will be responsible for all services and charges that are 
incurred after the time from which the renter closed their account. If the district 
is unable to collect from the renter for more than 30 days (refer to Section 10.11 
“Property Owner Responsibility”), then the renter’s balance will revert into the 
owner’s name. 
If the renter becomes delinquent and is subject for shutoff due to nonpayment, 
the property owner will be required to put service in their name. The past due 
amount will be transferred to the owners account (refer to Section 10.11 
“Property Owner Responsibility”). 

 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 47 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 13 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

10.1.3 CLOSING BILLS.  Closing bills shall be prepared upon request of the customer 
or upon change of account.  All outstanding obligations shall remain the property 
owner's responsibility per Section 10.11. 

10.2 PAYMENT 
10.2.1 DATE DUE.  Amounts due VRWD pursuant to bill rendered in conformance with 

Subsection 10.1 above, shall be due and payable upon deposit of said bills in 
the United States mail addressed to the customer at the mailing address 
designated by him or upon presentation to the customer in person or by 
electronic bill as elected as a billing preference by the customer. 

10.2.2 DELINQUENCY 

10.2.2.1 WATER SERVICE. Payment due on water bills shall become delinquent unless paid 
on or before the 10th day of the month following the billing month. Example: bills 
dated January 31st become delinquent at the close of business on February 10th.  

10.2.2.2 DELINQUENT PENALTIES. When a bill has been delinquent for thirty (30) days 
(forty (40) days after the water bill date), the Delinquent Penalty shall be assessed if 
the bill is greater than the Delinquent Penalty. Example: bills dated January 31st 
become delinquent on February 10th and if still unpaid by March 10th will be 
assessed a delinquent penalty if the bill is greater than the Delinquent Penalty.  

10.2.2.3 DELINQUENT NOTIFICATION. If a bill remains delinquent forty (40) days after the 
water bill date, VRWD may send a delinquency letter to the customer(s) of record 
(property owner/manager and tenant) or contact the customer(s) by telephone or 
email or place a shutoff door hanger notice at the service address of the delinquent 
account. If a bill remains delinquent fifty (50) days after the water bill date, VRWD 
shall call or mail and email the customer of record to notify them of the delinquency, 
delinquent penalties assessed, pending shutoff date and the Field Service penalty if 
the water is turned off.  If notification is by phone, VRWD shall offer to provide in 
writing to the customer a copy of Sections 10 and 11 of these Rules and Regulations 
and discuss options to avert a water shutoff for nonpayment.  If notification is by mail, 
it shall be sent to the customer of the residence to which the residential service is 
provided. If the customer’s address is not the address of the property to which service 
is provided, the notice shall also be sent to the address of the property to which 
residential service is provided, addressed to “Occupant,” and will include a copy of 
the District’s Discontinuance of Water Service Policy based on Sections 10 & 11 of 
these Rules and Regulations, a description of payment plan options and the  appeal 
process. Such notification shall be given in accordance with California Health and 
Safety Code Section 116908. If a bill remains delinquent after the first notification(s) 
via telephone or mail or email and at least seven (7) days before service is subject 
to shutoff, a notice of imminent discontinuation of service will be placed in a visible 
location at the service residence (door hanger notice). 

10.2.2.4 DISCONTINUANCE OF WATER SERVICE.  Water service will not be shut off until 
sixty (60) days after a bill remains delinquent (70 days after the water bill date).  
Water service will not be shut off if an adult in the residence is in the process of 
appealing the water bill or negotiating a payment plan or other accommodation. A 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 48 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 14 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

water service will not be shut off for nonpayment if all the following conditions are 
met:   

(1) An occupant of the residence to which the service is provided submits a certification 
of a primary care provider that discontinuation of water service will be life threating to 
or pose a serious threat to the health and safety of, a resident of the premises. 

(2) The customer demonstrates that they are financially unable to pay the water bill during 
the normal billing cycle.  The customer shall be deemed financially unable to pay for 
water service within the normal billing cycle if the customer or any member of the 
customer’s household is a current recipient of CalWORKs, CalFresh, General 
Assistance, Medi-Cal, Supplemental Security Income/State Supplementary Payment 
Program, or California Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, 
and Children, or the customer declares that the household’s annual income is less 
than 200 percent of the federal poverty level. 

(3) The customer is willing to enter into an amortization agreement, an alternative 
payment schedule, or a deferral regarding the delinquent water bill.  

If and when service is shut off for nonpayment, a Field Service Charge will be 
assessed.  The Delinquent Penalty and Field Service Charge shall be in 
accordance with the current Rates and Fees Schedule and will be added to the 
bill for costs associated with noticing and disconnecting the service. (See 
Appendix I for Rates and Fees Schedule) 

10.2.2.5 RESTORATION OF WATER SERVICE.  In order to restore water service following 
shutoff for nonpayment, the customer will be required to enter into a payment plan 
or pay the total due on the account at the time service is restored including, but not 
limited to: water service, Delinquent Fee, Field Service Charges and Deposit.  
Payment for service reconnection must be made in cash, cashier’s check or credit 
card only. (See Appendix I for Rates and Fees Schedule) 

10.2.2.6 REMEDIES FOR NONPAYMENT. The General Manager may institute action in any 
court of competent jurisdiction, to cause the delinquent amount to be added to and 
become a part of the annual tax levied upon the property in accordance with Section 
72094, et seq. of the California Water Code, and/or take any other steps to effect 
collection for services rendered by VRWD. The General Manager may establish a 
payment plan for the customer for up to 6 months and may adjust bills deemed to be 
in error.  Delinquent payments older than two years and less than $50 per account 
may be written off as bad debt by the General Manager.  

10.3 RETURNED CHECK.  If a check is returned from the bank for any reason, a returned 
item penalty shall be charged the NSF fee in accordance with the current Rates and 
Fees Schedule.  (See Appendix I for Rates and Fees Schedule) 

 
11 HEARING FOR DELINQUENT AND DISPUTED BILLS 

11.1 HEARING.  A customer or adult at the residence who has a delinquent and/or disputed 
bill is entitled to a hearing and review by the General Manager, Monday through Friday, 
holidays excepted, between 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 noon and 1:00 p.m. and 4:30 p.m.    If 
the dispute cannot be resolved, a hearing will be arranged for the next scheduled Board 
meeting.  The decision of the Board will be final. 

  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 49 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 15 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

12 CUSTOMER REQUESTED DISCONTINUANCE & RESTORATION OF 
SERVICE 

12.1 SHUTOFF FOR TEMPORARY PERIOD OF NON-USE.  A service may be discontinued 
at the request of the customer for a temporary period of non-use.  During the period of 
non-use the Base Rate shall continue to be paid in accordance with section 9.3. 

12.2 ARRANGEMENT FOR DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE.  Water service will be 
turned off on the date requested by the customer, provided twenty-four (24) hours 
advance notice, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays is furnished to VRWD. 

12.3 ADVANCE NOTICE.  Regardless of whether restoration of service is requested by a 
current customer or a new customer, VRWD shall be provided a minimum of twenty-
four (24) hours notice, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, in advance of such 
restoration of service. 

12.4 DEDUCTIONS.  If a service is discontinued, deductions may be made from the 
customer's guarantee deposit to cover an unpaid bill due at time the service was shutoff, 
in which case service shall not be resumed until the deposit is restored to the current 
amount. 

 
13 METER TESTS 

13.1 REQUEST FOR TEST.  A customer who believes that the water meter serving his 
premises in not accurately measuring the water delivered may request a test of the 
water meter.  When such a test is requested, the customer shall be required to pay a 
meter test fee to partially offset the cost of the test.  (See Appendix I for Rates and Fees 
Schedule) 

13.2 If VRWD believes that the meter is inaccurately measuring the water delivered to a 
customer's premises, it may initiate a test of the meter to determine the accuracy.  In 
the case of VRWD-initiated tests, the customer is not charged a test fee. 

13.3 13.2 TEST RESULTS.  If the meter is found to be registering at a rate less than ninety-
five (95) percent of true flow or greater than one hundred and five (105) percent of true 
flow, appropriate adjustment of the customer's water bills for the immediately preceding 
four months will be made and the customer's account credited or charged as 
determined by VRWD to be appropriate in light of the test results.  If the test shows 
registrations outside the limits set forth above, the meter test fee shall be refunded. 

 
14 DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES 

14.1 ALTERNATE PROCEDURES.  Whenever extension of the water system is required 
because the lands to be served do not lie along a pipeline of adequate capacity or 
proper pressure, or special facilities for water service are required, the works shall be 
installed in accordance with one of the following procedures: 
14.1.1 INSTALLATION BY VRWD.  The works may be installed by VRWD with the cost 

associated with service to the applicant's property paid by the applicant.  All fees 
are to be paid prior to work commencing, including Capacity Charges, deposits 
and installation fees. 

14.1.2 INSTALLATION BY CUSTOMER.  The works shall be financed and installed by 
the applicant in accordance with plans and specifications previously approved by 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 50 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 16 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

VRWD.  The applicant may be required to pay to VRWD the cost of engineering, 
inspection, and administrative services incurred in connection with the works. 

14.2 EXCESS CAPACITY.  Where distribution facilities are to be constructed pursuant to 
any of the procedures set forth in Section 14, VRWD shall determine whether or not 
such facilities could be utilized to provide service to lands other than those for which 
service is requested.  If other lands are benefited by service through such facilities, 
VRWD may require the installation of works with sufficient capacity to service such other 
lands in addition to those for which service is requested.  If such excess capacity is 
installed, the following rules respecting financing and repayment shall apply: 
14.2.1 COST ALLOCATION BY BOARD.  Regardless of which procedures of this 

section are applied, the Board shall determine an equitable division of the total 
cost of the facilities between the lands requesting service and those for which 
the excess capacity is provided.  Costs associated with the excess capacity so 
determined shall become a 10-year lien on water service to the land for which 
excess capacity is provided, and service shall not be rendered to any portion of 
said land until the owner thereof has executed an agreement with VRWD 
covering repayment by him of costs allocated to the land for which such owner 
requests water service 

14.2.2 INSTALLATION BY CUSTOMER.  If the works are constructed pursuant to the 
procedure in Subsection 14.21 of this document, VRWD may enter into a ten(10) 
year reimbursement agreement with the applicant, and moneys will be 
reimbursed as benefiting property owners connect, and moneys will be collected, 
provided that ownership is retained. Agreements must be negotiated at the time 
of installation. Refer to Section 20.221. 

 
15 WATER SUPPLY AND INTERRUPTION OF DELIVERY 

15.1 NO LIABILITY DUE TO INTERRUPTION OF DELIVERY.  VRWD will attempt to deliver 
to customers a continuous and sufficient supply of water at the meter.  VRWD, however, 
shall not be liable for interruption of service or shortage or insufficiency of supply or for 
any loss or damage occasioned thereby. 

15.2 NO LIABILITY DUE TO REPAIRS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO VRWD’S SYSTEM.  For 
the purpose of making repairs or installing improvements to the system, VRWD shall 
have the right to temporarily suspend the delivery of water.  VRWD may notify 
customers in advance of such action, except in cases of emergency.  Repairs or 
improvements may be performed during regular working hours except in the case of 
emergencies as defined by VRWD.  VRWD shall not be liable for any loss or damage 
occasioned by or the result of repairs or improvements made to the VRWD system.  The 
customer’s water system is expected to be of sufficiently maintained condition as to be 
able to handle the effects of work being completed on the VRWD system.   

15.3 WATER SHORTAGES.  During times of threatened or actual water shortage, VRWD 
will apportion its available supply among its customers in the manner that appears most 
equitable under the circumstances then prevailing with due regard to public health and 
safety, and to priorities of types of use established by the California Water Code. 

  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 51 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 17 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

16 VRWD EQUIPMENT ON CUSTOMER'S PREMISES 

16.1 RIGHT OF ACCESS.  All service pipe and equipment needed to serve a customer up 
to and including the meter shall be owned by VRWD whether installed (1) on public or 
private property, or (2) at applicant's or VRWD's expense.  VRWD equipment required 
for service, which is installed on a customer’s premises, may be repaired, replaced, or 
removed by VRWD.   Authorized representatives of VRWD shall have the right of 
access to such equipment for any purpose reasonably connected with furnishing 
service.  VRWD shall make no payment for placing or maintaining equipment that is 
required solely for providing service to the customer's premises. 

16.2 RESPONSIBILITY OF CUSTOMER.  The customer shall exercise care to prevent 
damage to or interference with the operation or servicing of VRWD equipment.  In the 
event a customer installs improvements that create the need to modify VRWD 
equipment for operation or servicing, the Customer shall pay such costs.  The customer 
shall be liable for any damage to VRWD owned meters, locks or other equipment which 
is caused by himself or his tenants, agents, employees, contractors, licensees or 
permittee and must properly reimburse VRWD for all costs direct and indirect. 

16.3 EASEMENTS.  Should the District determine that an easement is necessary to service 
a parcel, such easement may be acquired to facilitate VRWD operations. 

 
17 RESPONSIBILITY FOR WATER RECEIVING EQUIPMENT 

17.1 RESPONSIBILITY OF CUSTOMER. The customer shall be responsible for connecting 
his pipeline to VRWD's meter.  The customer shall furnish and install, at his own risk 
and expense, that portion of the water system, which begins at the outlet side of the 
meter.  Such water receiving equipment shall remain the property of the customer, and 
he shall be responsible for its maintenance and repair.  VRWD may, at its sole 
discretion, require the customer to install protective devices or adjust, replace or 
discontinue using any water receiving or regulating equipment when the customer’s 
operations and/or equipment cause surges or other potentially damaging effects to 
VRWD’s water system.  VRWD may require the customer to submit plans for this 
proposed water receiving equipment for approval by VRWD prior to the installation of 
its service connection facilities.  Where the customer desires reduced or increased 
pressure, he shall be responsible for installing and maintaining the necessary 
regulators, pumps and/or relief valves.  In such cases, the equipment shall be installed 
on the customer's side of the meter and at his sole expense. 

17.2 VRWD NOT LIABLE.  VRWD shall not be responsible for any loss or damage caused 
by the negligence, want of proper care or wrongful act of the customer or any of his 
tenants, agents, employees, contractors, licensees or permittees in installing, 
maintaining, using, operating and/or interfering with any water receiving equipment.  
Furthermore, VRWD shall not be responsible for damage caused by faucets, valves 
and other equipment which may be open at any time that water is turned on at the 
meter. 

17.3 ELECTRICAL GROUNDING.  VRWD is not responsible for providing an electrical 
ground through water service equipment.  Accordingly, customers are cautioned not to 
attach any ground wiring to plumbing which is or may be connected to VRWD service 
equipment, unless the customer installs an approved insulating device between the 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 52 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 18 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

customer's and VRWD's system.  VRWD may hold the customer liable for any damage 
to VRWD property resulting from a ground wire attachment. 

 
18 PROTECTION OF PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY 

18.1 RESPONSIBILITY OF CUSTOMER.  In making plumbing connections, the customer is 
required to comply with the regulations of the Division of Drinking Water, as set forth in 
Title 17 of the California Administrative Code and the United States Public Health 
Service.  Such regulations prohibit (1) unprotected cross connections between a public 
water supply and any non-approved source of water and (2) unprotected water service 
connections to premises where there is a possibility of contaminated water backflowing 
into the public water system. 
If VRWD has any reason to believe that a backflow prevention device may be 
necessary, the customer will be required to install said devisedevice at customer's 
expense.  VRWD reserves the right to impose whatever requirement it deems 
necessary to protect the public water supply. 
When requested, the customer, at his sole expense, shall furnish and install any 
approved backflow device to the satisfaction of VRWD. 

18.2 VRWD REQUIREMENTS.  VRWD, in compliance with the Public Health Regulations, 
will require the installation of approved backflow prevention devices or other protective 
devices before granting or continuing service under such conditions as set forth 
hereafter: 
18.2.1 ALTERNATIVE SUPPLY.  Where another source of water is in use or is available 

for use unless the alternate supply has been certified for domestic use by the 
County Environmental Resource Agency - Environmental Health Division or the 
California State Division of Drinking Water.  Periodic water quality tests are 
required by VRWD, they shall be made at the sole expense of the customer.  
Water quality tests may be required for the following circumstances:  

18.2.1.1 CONTAMINATED SUBSTANCES.  Where contaminated liquid or soluble 
substances of any kind are used, produced and/or processed. 

18.2.1.2 FERTILIZERS OR OTHER CHEMICALS.  When service is made to land upon which 
the customer utilizes his irrigation system for the application of fertilizers or other 
chemicals through the injection of such substances into the water system. 

18.2.1.3 SPECIAL CASES.  In special cases, at the sole discretion of VRWD, VRWD may 
require the customer to eliminate certain plumbing or piping connections as an 
additional precaution to prevent backflow. 

18.3 CUSTOMER INSPECTION OF PROTECTIVE DEVICES.  The regulations of VRWD 
and the California State Division of Drinking Water require that the owner of any 
premises on or for which protective devices are installed for the protection of VRWD 
facilities shall cause these devises to be inspected and checked for proper operation at 
least once per year by a licensed plumber approved by the Ventura County 
Environmental Resource Agency - Environmental Health Division.  All defective devices 
shall be serviced, overhauled or replaced at the customer's expense.  A written report 
on this annual inspection, including any required corrective action taken, shall be 
submitted to VRWD or it'sits appointee. 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 53 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 19 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

18.4 VRWD INSPECTION OF PROTECTIVE DEVICES.  Protective devices may be 
inspected and tested for proper operation by VRWD or it'sits appointee.  Service to any 
premises may be immediately discontinued if it is found that dangerous unprotected 
cross-connections exist or if any defect is found in the operation of the protective 
devices.  Service shall not be restored until the customer corrects such defects. 

18.5 PROTECTION OF CUSTOMER'S PLUMBING SYSTEM.  As a protection to the 
customer's water system, a suitable pressure reducing valve must be installed. Where 
check valves or other backflow prevention devices are installed such installation must 
conform to the requirements of the plumbing code as adopted by the local jurisdictional 
agency.  Such installation shall be installed and maintained at the customer's sole 
expense. 

 
19 DAMAGE OF VRWD FACILITIES AND THEFT OF WATER  

19.1 Intentional damage to, destruction of, or tampering with VRWD facilities, and the 
unauthorized appropriation or theft of VRWD water shall be punishable as follows: 

a) By termination of water service to the perpetrator. 
b) By the assessment of liquidated damages in an amount not to exceed the  actual 

damages incurred or $1,000.00, whichever is greater. 
Persons or other legal entities who divert water from our system as described in the 
Penal Code, Section 498, without authorized consent from VRWD or without proper 
payment for the water diverted will be billed a minimum fee of $100. 
The person or persons charged with one or more of the acts above shall be entitled to 
a hearing to be conducted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the 
Administrative Procedure Act (Government code Section 11500, et seq.). 
Pending said hearing, the General Manager shall determine whether water service to 
the person or persons so charged shall be continued or discontinued.  His determination 
shall be based on the following factors: 

a) Amount of damage to VRWD facilities. 
b) Amount of water lost through such damage. 
c) Likelihood of the damage being repeated. 
d) Notwithstanding any administrative code, criminal charges will be filed. 
 
20 WILL SERVE AND WATER AVAILABILITY LETTERS 

20.1 GENERAL. Upon request by the owner, or his designee, of any parcel of land within the 
boundaries of VRWD and the determination of all water service and fire protection 
requirements in a manner satisfactory to VRWD, VRWD may issue Will Serve Letters 
with or without additional terms, conditions, or restrictions.  Will Serve Letters will not 
be issued for any parcel which is located within the service area of another water 
purveyor.  Letters will not be issued where an agreement is required until the agreement 
is fully executed.  All will serve letters shall comply with current VRWD, and County 
Water Works Manual requirements. 
Variances to this section may be granted upon approval of the Board of Directors where 
the owner, or his/her designee, can provide evidence such variance is warranted.  All 
variances shall be established on a case-by-case basis. 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 54 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 20 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

20.2 WATER AVAILABILITY LETTER. The Water Availability Letter shall conform with 
section 1.3.6 of the County Waterworks Manual, shall be prepared by VRWD and 
submitted to the County for Approval.   

20.3 WATER AVAILABILITY LETTER.  A Water Availability Letter may be issued if the owner 
needs assurance that a water service can be obtained but is not yet ready to install the 
water service.  Water Availability Letters shall be good for 12-months and will assure 
the ability to install a new water service during the 12-months provided the requirements 
for a Will Serve Letter are met.  The declaration of a connection moratorium by VRWD 
shall not apply to current Water Availability Letters.   

20.4 WILL SERVE LETTER. A new Will Serve Letter shall conform with Section 1.3.8 of the 
County of Ventura Waterworks Manual.  Prior to issuance of the Will Serve Letter the 
Applicant shall provide the VRWD an Allocation from Casitas Municipal Water District 
to the District for the anticipated annual quantity of Casitas water required by the 
Applicant’s proposed project.  Casitas does not issue Allocations for Additional Dwelling 
Units. The Casitas Allocation obtained by the Applicant shall accrue to the District and 
shall not create any water right, privilege or influence the individual water budget for the 
Applicant or their successors.  A Will Serve Letter will only be issued after the Capacity 
Charge has been paid along with a deposit for any related meter or service connection 
costs for items installed or provided by VRWD.  Installation of the new water service will 
occur when construction is ready to proceed.  (See Appendix I for current Fee Schedule 
for Will Serve Letters.) 

20.5 SINGLE PARCELS.  Single parcels are defined as those parcels, which are zoned so 
that further split cannot be made.  Water service will be provided in accordance with 
one of the following alternatives as determined by VRWD: 
20.5.1 ALTERNATIVE 1: INSTALL METERS ONLY.  Install a metering facility to serve 

the single parcel and living dwelling.  Separate metering facilities shall be 
required for each additional dwelling unless waived in writing by the General 
Manager.  The metering facility will be installed within Ventura County's right-of-
way at a mutually agreeable location.  This alternate assumes the Ventura 
County Fire Protection District and/or VRWD are completely satisfied that 
adequate fire protection can be afforded to the single parcel from VRWD existing 
distribution facilities. 

20.5.2 ALTERNATIVE 2: INSTALL DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES.  Install the distribution 
facility necessary to provide adequate fire protection and to serve the single 
parcel through a metering facility.  Separate metering facilities shall be required 
for each additional dwelling unless approved in writing by the General Manager.  
This alternate assumes that the Ventura County Fire Protection District and/or 
VRWD require that distribution facilities be installed in order to provide domestic 
and fire protection to the single parcel in accordance with the Ventura County 
Waterworks Manual, as amended from time to time. 

20.5.3 REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT.  Owner shall enter into an agreement with 
VRWD for the installation of the distribution facilities described above.  The 
agreement may provide that as other property owners obtain service within ten 
(10) years thereafter, VRWD will endeavor to require an appropriate portion of 
the cost of said distribution facilities be reimbursed to the Owner. Agreements 
must be negotiated at the time of installation.  Refer to Section 14.22. 

  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 55 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 21 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

21 MASTER METER FOR ASSOCIATION 

A single metering facility may be installed to serve a single or multiple parcels for which 
the owners thereof have joined together and formed an association.  All of the owners of 
the various parcels will be required to enter into an agreement for the purpose of installing 
said distribution and fire protection. 

21.1 ASSOCIATION.  An association shall consist of two (2) or more owners who agree to 
burden their property with the responsibility for (a) installing, operating and maintaining 
its own distribution and/or fire protection facilities, (b) providing water to its members, 
(c) payment of the cost of the installation of the master metering facilities and (d) 
payment of the water bill, the service charge and other related fees and deposits 
required by VRWD. 

21.2 FOUR OR LESS MULTIPLE PARCELS.  Multiple parcels are defined as those parcels, 
which are being subdivided into four (4), or less lots from a single parcel.  Water service 
will be provided in accordance with one of the following alternates as determined by 
VRWD: 

21.3 ALTERNATE 1: SEPARATE METER INSTALLATION.  Install a separate metering 
facility to serve each of the multiple parcels and/or additional dwelling units.  These 
metering facilities will be installed within VRWD's right-of-way at a mutually agreeable 
location.  This alternate assumes that the Ventura Fire Protection District and/or VRWD 
are completely satisfied that adequate fire protection can be afforded to each of the 
multiple parcels from VRWD's existing distribution facilities. 

21.4 ALTERNATE 2: INSTALL DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES.  Install the distribution facilities 
necessary to provide adequate fire protection and to install separate metering facilities 
to serve each of the multiple parcels and/or additional dwelling units from the new 
distribution facilities.  This alternate assumes that the Ventura County Fire Protection 
District and/or VRWD require that distribution facilities be installed in order to provide 
domestic service and fire protection to each of the parcels in accordance with the 
Ventura County Waterworks Standards, as amended from time to time.  All of the 
owners of the multiple parcels will be required to enter into an agreement with VRWD 
for the installation of the distribution facilities described above. 

 
22 SUBDIVISION - FIVE OR MORE PARCELS 
Letter may be issued for any parcel which is being subdivided in accordance with the 
Subdivision Map Act and for which the County of Ventura requires that the developer 
construct the necessary water distribution and fire protection facilities as a condition for 
approval of the subdivision.  Such letter will request that approval of the subdivision not 
be granted until after an agreement between the developer and VRWD has been fully 
executed and notice thereof has been forwarded to the County. 

23 DISREGARD OF RULES & REGULATIONS OF WATER SERVICE 

Willful disregard of the Rules and Regulations shall result in immediate discontinuance of 
service and forfeiture of the deposit. 

  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 56 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 22 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

24 MINOR DISAGREEMENTS  

The General Manager is authorized to negotiate and resolve minor disagreements on 
behalf of the water district.  He is authorized to make restitution, as he deems necessary, 
using good business practices.  His monetary authority for this purpose is limited to $250.   

25 HEARINGS   

If the General Manager cannot resolve any dispute regarding VRWD Rules & 
Regulations, a written request for a hearing before the Board will be arranged.  The 
hearing will be scheduled for the next Regular Board Meeting after it can be placed on 
the Agenda.  The decision of the Board will be final. 

26 SPECIAL BOARD MEETINGS 

A written request for a Special Board Meeting will be considered and scheduled at the 
pleasure of the Directors.  A fee to cover District costs must be paid prior to scheduling 
the meeting. (See Appendix III for Fee Schedule). 

27 ATTORNEYS' FEES  

Should any district customer bring any legal action against VRWD, and the District is the 
prevailing party, VRWD shall be entitled to recover the District's attorney fees and costs 
in connection therewith. The word prevailing as used in this section shall include any 
action in law, in equity, or pursuant to arbitration in which VRWD has been successful.  

28 PURCHASE OF MATERIALS, SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 

28.1 The General Manager is authorized to execute purchase orders and contracts not 
exceeding $20,000 for budgeted expenses without prior Board approval, provided that 
this limitation shall not apply to replenish warehouse stores stock. Purchases for 
warehouse stores stock shall be made in an amount within the currently approved 
budget and equal to but not exceeding an amount necessary to maintain the minimum 
quantities of stock on hand as determined by the General Manager to be economical 
and necessary for VRWD’s needs. 
Purchases shall only require a supporting purchase order at the request and discretion 
of the Office Manager, and all proposed expenditures shall be verified to ascertain that 
funds have been included in the budget for the activity or expense intended.  Purchase 
Orders may be issued by all staff members; the General Manager shall approve all 
purchase orders when over $5,000. 

a) No purchase shall be made unless moneys for payment of VRWD’s obligations 
thereunder are available for expenditure under the budget applicable to the year in which 
such purchase order is issued.  

b) No purchases shall be made unless they relate to the operation and maintenance of the 
VRWD facilities or to a construction project for VRWD.  

c) Invoices for purchases made by staff greater than $200 shall be approved by the 
purchaser prior to payment to ensure billing is correct and items have been 
completed/received.  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 57 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 23 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

d) The General Manager may approve change orders to contracts provided the total 
increased cost of all change orders do not exceed 5 percent of the contract amount or 
$20,000, whichever is greater unless a different specific limit has been set by Board 
action. 

28.2 During a Board declared State of Emergency the General Manager may authorize 
emergency purchases or contracts greater than provided in section 28.1 provided they 
are approved by the Board President, or his designee and the full Board of Directors is 
provided a financial update at least every 7 days while the State of Emergency persists. 

29 PETTY CASH FUND  

A petty cash fund of $300 shall be maintained, and expenditure may be made from this 
fund only for individual expenditures not in excess of $300.  Expenditures may be made 
for postage, freight, invoices for materials, reimbursement of personal expenses, meal 
reimbursement and in payment of encroachment permit fees, licenses, or other charges 
levied by a county, state agency, public utility in connection with granting to VRWD of 
rights in property owned or controlled by such grantors and other similar purposes.  

30 CONTRACTING, BIDDING AND PURCHASING REQUIREMENTS 

30.1 For purchases up to $500 no bid is required. From $500 to $5,000 one informal written 
bid is required. From $5,000 to $35,000 three informal written bids are required. $35,000 
and over requires formal bids and award of contract by the Board. Formal bids shall be 
procured as follows: 

a) A notice inviting bids shall set a date and time for the opening of bids. The notice 
shall posted be at least 10 days before the date of opening of the bids. 

b) The notice inviting bids shall be posted at a minimum at the Ventura County 
Contractors Association plan room, 1830 Lockwood, No. 110, Oxnard, California 
93030 and on their website: www.vccainc.com. 

c) If by formal resolution the Board declares an emergency, the notice inviting bids 
may be posted 24 hours prior to bid opening.   

d) All bids for construction work shall be presented under sealed cover and shall be 
accompanied by one of the following forms of bidder’s security for 10% of the bid 
amount: 
1. Cash 
2. A cashier’s check made payable to VRWD. 
3. A certified check made payable to VRWD. 
4. A bidder’s bond executed by an admitted surety insurer, made payable to 

VRWD. 
Upon an award to the lowest bidder, the security of an unsuccessful bidder shall be 
returned in a reasonable period of time. 

30.2 SOLE SOURCE PURCHASES. The general Manager can approve sole source 
purchasing as an exception to section 30 for any of the following reasons:  
a) Only one available supplier with no available competition. 
b) Equipment that was purchased with bidding competition, but support, spare parts 

and repairs have to be provided by factory reps with protected territory.  
c) Services that have been bid out and results have been unsatisfactory to VRWD.  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 58 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 24 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

d) Products used to maintain system standard when significant spare parts 
inventories need to be maintained and readily available. 

e) Utility companies when VRWD is required to work with them.  
f) Purchases that require significant staff time to get to the location to conduct the 

business in comparison to the cost of the item.  
g) Emergency work. 

30.3 CONTRACTING FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. The Board shall have sole 
authority to approve and enter into professional service contracts, except that the 
General Manager shall have authority to award contracts that meet all the following 
criteria: 
a) The contract does not obligate the District to any payment exceeding Ten 

Thousand Dollars per year ($10,000 per year); 
b) Moneys for payment of VRWD’s obligations thereunder are available for 

expenditure under the budget applicable to the year in which such contract is 
issued. 

30.4 SELECTION PROCEDURES FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONTRACTS. 
Contracts for professional service consultants shall be made by written agreement 
pursuant to the following selection procedure:  

30.5 QUALIFICATION. The General Manager shall encourage firms generally qualified to 
undertake the types of work required by the District to periodically submit statements of 
qualifications and performance data. Such statements shall be kept on file and may be 
utilized to evaluate consultant qualifications. Other evaluation criteria shall include, but 
not be limited to, prior experience with, personal interview with, or references of 
prospective consultants.  

30.6 SELECTION OF CONSULTANT.  

30.6.1 Consultant selection shall, whenever possible, be based on at least three 
separate proposals for services.  For professional services estimated by the 
General Manager to exceed Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000), the General 
Manager shall, if feasible, recommend to the Board Consultants based upon 
consultant responses to the District’s request for proposals.  

30.6.2 Selection for professional services of private architectural, landscape 
architectural, engineering, legal, environmental, land surveying, or construction 
project management firms shall be on the basis of demonstrated competence 
and on the professional qualifications necessary for the satisfactory performance 
of the services required.  In order to implement this method of selection of such 
firms, District shall use procedures that assure that these services are engaged 
on the basis of demonstrated competence and qualifications for the types of 
services to be performed and at fair and reasonable prices to the District. 

30.6.3 With respect to the selection of consultants not listed in Section 30.6.2 above, 
selection shall be based on Best Value. In accordance with applicable law, the 
General Manager shall determine the most qualified consultant to provide the 
services required. Price shall not be the only determining factor in the selection 
of a consultant. Other factors such as related experience, professional skills, 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 59 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 25 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

approach, professional credentials, availability of personnel, understanding of 
scope  of work, quality of response to request for proposal, references, etc., 
shall be considered. The basis of all selection decisions shall be documented in 
writing. 

30.7 SIGNING OF CONTRACTS. In accordance with California Water Codes section 
30579.5 the Board authorizes the General Manager to sign contracts on behalf of the 
district for amounts up to $20,000. Contracts for amounts greater than $20,000 shall be 
signed by the Board President and Board Secretary in accordance Water Code with 
sections 30578 and 30579. 

31 INVESTMENT POLICY 
The investment policy is prepared in accordance with Government Code Section §53646 to 
outline the policies for prudent investment of the District’s funds and to provide guidelines for 
suitable investment. The investment policies and practices are based upon Federal, State 
and Local law and prudent money management and periodically reviewed for compliance 
with current regulations and adopted by the Board by resolution. 

 
32 RESERVE POLICY 

The financial reserves for the District are held in four categories: Operating, Water Sales 
Fluctuation, Capital Improvement and Emergency. The objective of the District is to have 
approximately 7% of the value of the operating budget in the Operating Reserve; surplus 
revenues from high water sales years are placed in the Water Sales Fluctuation Reserve to 
a maximum of about $400,000 and used to supplement the budget during low water sales 
years; the fund amount in the Capital Improvement Reserve fluctuates as necessary to meet 
the 10-year CIP; the goal for Emergency Reserves is $1,000,000. 

33 COLLECTION AND DEPOSIT OF REVENUES 

A General Operating Checking account shall be established and maintained in a bank 
designated by the Board of Directors and all revenue, unless otherwise provided, shall be 
deposited therein. A separate Security Deposit checking account shall be established and 
maintained in a bank designated by the Board of Directors for all Security Deposits from 
customers. The Board of Directors may, from time to time, direct the General Manager to 
establish and maintain special bank accounts for the handling of funds received or set aside 
for specific purposes.  

All revenue collected shall be accounted for in a manner that will indicate the source, nature, 
and amount of each collection. Collections so made shall be deposited intact in the bank 
accounts established. 

The maximum cash balance in the checking accounts shall not exceed the federally insured 
(FDIC) amounts as follows: 

a) General Operating Checking:  $200,000 
b) Security Deposit Checking: $ 50,000 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 60 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 26 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

Investment funds exceeding the limits in a) & b) above shall be placed in the Ventura County 
Treasury Portfolio and/or the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund.  

34 DISBURSEMENTS 

34.1 FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS. Routine financial obligations of the Ventura River Water 
District shall be paid from the General Operating Checking account. Disbursements 
from the checking accounts shall be made in accordance with the following:  

a) By a check signed by either two Board Members or a Board Member and the 
General Manager.  

b) Under no circumstances shall any person authorized under this rule to sign 
checks of Ventura River Water District sign a blank or incomplete check.  

An audit of all claims against Ventura River Water District shall be made prior to presentation 
of the checks for signature. Such audit shall consist of a verification as to accuracy and 
completeness of all documents supporting payment, i.e., copy of purchase order, executed 
receiving and inspection report, and vendor’s invoice or statement. 

35 DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY  

35.1 APPLICATION. The following policies and procedures apply to the disposition of the 
District’s Surplus Property. These policies and procedures shall not apply to the 
disposition of the District’s surplus real property, which is subject to the notification and 
disposition procedures set forth in Government Code Section 54220 et seq. 

35.2 PURPOSE. The purposes of these policies and procedures governing disposition of the 
District’s Surplus Property are as follows: 

35.2.1 To ensure that only District-owned personal property that does not provide the 
minimum level of basic District service and usefulness is lawfully disposed of;  

35.2.2 To ensure that District-owned assets are not disposed of when the disposal of 
the asset or the terms of the disposal of the asset could disadvantage the District; 
and 

35.2.3 To ensure that, whenever feasible, all District Surplus Property is disposed of in 
a cost-effective manner that minimizes disposal costs and maximizes revenues 
by converting idle equipment and materials to revenue funds for other District 
uses. 

35.3 DECLARATION OF SURPLUS PROPERTY. In accordance with the procedure set forth 
below, the General Manger is authorized to formally declare District owned personal 
property to be Surplus Property.   

35.4 DISPOSITION BY GENERAL MANAGER. Any Surplus Property which has a current 
book value of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) or less, shall be disposed of by the 
General Manager in accordance with the procedures for disposal set forth below.  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 61 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 27 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

Reasonable attempts shall be made to maximize the value received from such Surplus 
Property. 

35.5 DISPOSITION BY BOARD APPROVAL. Prior to disposing of a salvageable Surplus 
Property which has a current book value of more than Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000), 
the General Manager shall present to the Board of Directors a report regarding the item 
and the proposed schedule and procedures for disposing of that item.   

35.6 PROCEDURES FOR DISPOSAL. The District may dispose of Surplus Property in any 
manner deemed appropriate by the General Manager, including, without limitation, the 
following:  

35.6.1 PUBLIC AUCTION. In accordance with applicable law, the disposal of District 
owned Surplus Property may be accomplished through public auction. Public 
auctions may include the use of electronic commerce (online) or on-site auctions.  

35.6.2 PRIVATE SALE BY COMPETITIVE BID. Disposal of District owned Surplus 
Property may be accomplished through private sale by competitive bid. The 
procedures by which private sales of Surplus Property are to be conducted shall 
be determined by the General  Manager. 

35.6.3 CHARITABLE DONATION. District owned Surplus Property deemed to have no 
market value after an attempt at sale through prescribed procedures may be 
donated to a charitable organization in lieu of lawfully discarding the property.  
For purposes of this policy, charitable organizations shall mean a nonprofit 
organization exempt from taxation under the provisions of the Internal Revenue 
Code, 26 U.S.C. 501 (C)(3). 

35.6.4 TRADE-IN. Disposal of District owned Surplus Property may be accomplished 
by trading-in the Surplus Property towards a new acquisition. 

35.6.5 TRANSFER TO FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES. 
District owned Surplus Property deemed to have no market value after an 
attempt at sale through the procedures described herein may be donated to any 
governmental agency in lieu of discarding such property.  

35.6.6 SALE FOR SCRAP OR SALVAGE VALUE. Disposal of District owned Surplus 
Property may be accomplished by selling the property for its scrap or salvage 
value.  

35.7 DISPOSAL OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY EQUIPMENT.  In addition to all the 
other applicable requirements of these Rules and Regulations, the General Manager or 
designee shall require all proprietary information to be removed from information 
technology equipment before disposal.  Any disposal of such equipment as waste shall 
conform to current environmental regulations. 

35.8 PROCEEDS. Proceeds from the auction or sale of District owned Surplus Property will 
be deposited to the District’s general fund.  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 62 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 28 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

35.9 PROHIBITIONS. No director, officer, agent or employee of the District shall either 
directly or indirectly (including by action of any immediate family member of such 
individual) submit a bid for, purchase or in any other manner take possession of District 
owned Surplus Property unless approved by the Board at a regularly scheduled 
meeting. 

36 FIXED ASSET POLICY 

The District has significant investment in a variety of capital assets, which are used to provide 
water to customers. The purpose of this policy is to ensure that the District’s capital assets 
are acquired, safeguarded, controlled, disposed of, and accounted for in accordance with 
State and Federal regulations, generally accepted accounting principles, internal controls and 
audit requirements. 

A fixed asset is any tangible or intangible asset purchased for use in the day-to-day 
operations of the District from which an economic benefit will be derived over a period greater 
than one year and has an acquisition cost of $5,000 or more. Fixed assets include items such 
as land, water pipelines, pumps, filtration equipment, wells, storage tanks, buildings, vehicles, 
equipment, and furniture. Fixed assets with a purchase price of less than $5,000 are 
expensed in the period acquired. Expenditures for normal repairs and maintenance shall not 
be considered as capital expenditures. 

Customer meters and meter replacements are not considered assets, they are evaluated as 
individual meters and not as groupings based on orders. An asset that is acquired due to 
contribution or donation will be capitalized based on the estimated cost for those items. A 
right-to-use lease is an intangible capital asset. Right-of-use assets will be amortized over 
the life of a lease. 

Purchased Assets  
Purchased assets shall be recorded on actual costs including taxes, transportation costs, 
installation costs, and any other direct expenses incurred by the District in obtaining the asset 
prior to the date the asset is put in service. Subsequent items purchased which fall under the 
$5,000 threshold are expensed immediately and not capitalized.  

New Construction 
When the District constructs a fixed asset for its own use, all direct costs are included in the 
total cost of the asset. This includes items such as architectural, engineering, legal, consulting 
and etc. New construction assets will not begin to depreciate until the asset is put in service. 

Depreciation 
At the time a fixed asset is acquired, its cost is capitalized and subsequently depreciated 
utilizing the straight-line method based on full month convention over the asset’s estimated 
useful life. Depreciation will begin in the month the asset is placed in service and continue 
throughout its useful life. Land, intangible assets, and construction-in-progress are not 
depreciated. Useful life will be evaluated by the General Manager to ensure it is in compliance 
with the reporting framework from a variety of authoritative sources.  

  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 63 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 29 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

Management of Assets 
The General Manager, Field Supervisor and/or Office Manager will perform an annual asset 
inventory in May, and a report identifying any out of service assets will be given to the General 
Manager. Those assets will be disposed of in accordance with section 35: Disposal of Surplus 
Property. The General Manager will approve capitalization of new fixed assets on an annual 
basis in accordance with financial year end close procedures.  

37 REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURES  

In accordance with Government Code § 53065.5 the District shall, at least annually, disclose 
any reimbursement paid by the District within the immediately preceding fiscal year of at least 
one hundred dollars ($100) for each individual charge for services or product received.  
“Individual charge” includes, but is not limited to, one meal, lodging for one day, 
transportation, or a registration fee paid to any employee or member of the Board.  The 
disclosure requirement shall be fulfilled by including the reimbursement information of the 
prior fiscal year on the July Board Agenda. 

38 USE OF DISTRICT EQUIPMENT  

District tools and equipment are intended for use on District projects. The private use of 
District tools and equipment by employees or Directors is prohibited. 

3928 LEAK RELIEF  

39.128.1 When a leak is unavoidable and was promptly stopped once discovered, the 
General Manager may grant leak relief for leaked quantities greater than 40 units of 
water. The quantity of the leak shall be determined by subtracting the customer’s normal 
usage from total water usage including the leak, using data from a smart meter if 
available or other means of estimating the leaked volume. The normal usage plus the 
first 40 units of water shall be charged at the water rates currently in effect. The 
remaining leaked water shall be charged for the current cost of chlorine, electricity, and 
the Upper Ventura River Groundwater Agency pump fee per unit of water if the 
customer was served ground water during the leak event. The Abusive Water Waste 
Penalty shall be waived for the entire volume of a qualifying leak. If the customer was 
served Casitas water the cost of the remaining leaked water shall be the unit cost of the 
Casitas water. The General Manager’s decisions regarding leak relief may be appealed 
in writing to the Board of Directors. 

Examples of avoidable leaks shall include but are not limited to: freeze damage, use of 
PVC pipe above ground, a water valve that can be activated by an animal, leaky toilet 
or interior water fixture, leaky or sticking irrigation valve, malfunctioning water softeners, 
pool or pond filling systems, a reoccurring leak, a second leak in an old iron pipe, a leak 
that is unaddressed because the customer did not utilize a smart meter installed by the 
District or a leak in a class 200 (thin walled) PVC pipe.  The General Manager may 
apply discretion for unique circumstances regarding leak relief.  

39.228.2 Abusive Water Waste Penalty Relief - When a customer experiences a leak 
that does not meet the requirements above for Leak Relief, they may be considered for 
Abusive Water Waste Penalty Relief. Abusive Water Waste Penalty may be waived by 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 64 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 30 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

the General Manager if it was caused by an unintended use of water, was stopped in a 
timely manner and does not extend over more than two billing periods. Relief only 
applies to the Penalty; the regular cost of water shall be paid.  The value of water waste 
penalties must be greater than $50.00 to be eligible to apply for the Abusive Water 
Waste Penalty Relief program. To be eligible, customers may not have exceeded their 
water budget more than twice in the last 12 months. 

40  RECORD RETENTION POLICY  

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines to staff regarding the retention or disposal 
of the District’s records, to provide for the identification, maintenance, safeguarding and 
disposal of records in the normal course of business, to ensure prompt and accurate 
retrieval of records and to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. 
Records management and retention for the District will follow the guidelines provided by the 
State of California, excerpted from California Secretary of State, Local Government Records 
Management Guidelines, published February of 2006. 

All records created, received, or maintained by any District staff during their operations 
belong to the District and are retained and disposed of according to this policy. The District 
records must be kept until the stated minimum retention period has elapsed. 

The District may dispose of the following records at any time, without maintenance of a 
copy: 

1) Duplicates, the original or a permanent photographic record of which is on file; 

2) Rough drafts, notes and working papers prepared or kept by any employee or 
accumulated in the preparation of a communication, study or other document, unless 
of a formal nature contributing significantly to the preparation of the document after 
the contents thereof have been transferred to other records; 

3) Cards, listings, non-permanent indices, and other papers used for controlling work and 
transitionary files including letters of transmittal and similar records; 

4) Shorthand notebooks, telephone messages and inter-departmental notes. 

Once records have fulfilled their administrative, fiscal, or legal function they should be 
disposed of as soon as possible. Destruction of Records will be in accordance with this Policy 
and the attached Records Retention Schedule (Appendix IV), as authorized by the General 
Manager or his/her designee. Records must be destroyed after the expiration of the 
applicable retention period in accordance with this Policy and generally accepted records 
information management guidelines and procedures. Generally, Records not containing 
information of a confidential or proprietary nature may be destroyed by means of recycling or 
other waste removal service. Records containing confidential or proprietary information must 
be shredded or otherwise permanently destroyed. Records recorded on electronic or 
magnetic media may be erased and the media re-used or discarded. 

  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 65 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 31 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

4129 EFFECTIVE DATE  

These Rules and Regulations were approved by the Board of Directors on May 10October 
18, 2023 and are effective on that date.  Previous versions, Appendices and Amendments to 
the Rules and Regulations are hereby no longer in effect and are superseded.  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 66 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 32 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

APPENDIX I 
 

RATES AND FEES SCHEDULE 
--EFFECTIVE May 15, 2023-- 

  
DEPOSITS**  

Residential 3/4" to 1" (minimum)    $120* 
 Residential 1 ½ or 2" (minimum)    $250* 
 Business - General Mgrs. Discretion (minimum) $150 
 Temporary 2 1/2" Hydrant Meter (minimum)  $250*** 
 
* Or 2 times the highest water bill whichever is greater. 
** Deposits may be doubled with each disconnect for non-payment. 
*** Deposit is required for Hydrant Meters and is refunded when the meter is returned 
undamaged  
 
INSTALLATION FEES (If unusual conditions: All costs, direct & indirect) 
 Customer Service Valve, ¾”    $85 
 Customer Service Valve, 1”    $105 
 
METER TESTING FEES 
 3/4" - 2"  $100   

2 1/2" & up  $200 
 
FIRE STANDBY CHARGES  
 All Meters  $  53.22/month    

 
LOCK CUTTING FEE      $125 
(If a customer service is locked off and the lock is cut) 
 
FIRE HYDRANT FLOW TEST FEE    $200 
 
FAILURE TO TEST BACKFLOW DEVICE   $100 
(After 3rd request to have test performed.) 
 
TEMPORARY HYDRANT:  
METER INSTALLATION & REMOVAL   $50 plus $9.00 per 100 cubic feet (1 unit) 
All water rate charges will begin with the first unit used for all types of water service. 
 
PENALTIES 
DELINQUENT (> 40 days after bill date, waived with sign up for auto pay) $35  
FIELD SERVICE CHARGE (On/Off, Non-Sufficient Funds) $50 
ABUSIVE WATER WASTE PENALTY – Use Above Budget                         $ 5/unit 
WILL SERVE LETTER           $50 
FIRE FLOW VERIFICATION          $50 
 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 67 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 33 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

WATER VOLUME RATES 
 

Tier Units 
Single-Family 

Residential 
Multi-Family 
Residential 

Commercial 

1 
1 to 5 

(5 Units)  
$5.59 / unit 

6.98 / unit 6.81 / unit 
2 

6 to 12  
(7 Units) 

7.25 / unit 

3 
13 to 33 

(21 Units)  
9.64 / unit 

4 
Above 33 

Units 
13.44 / unit 

*One unit = 748 gallons = 1 Hundred Cubic Feet (HCF)   
 

 
PASS-THROUGH FOR WHOLESALE WATER RATE INCREASES 

 
Any increases in the District’s wholesale cost of water fees and charges from Casitas 
Municipal Water District may be passed through on the District’s water volume rates. Under 
no circumstance will the District’s water rates exceed the cost of service.  
 
  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 68 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 34 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

 
PURCHASED WATER SURCHARGE POLICY 

 
When supplemental Lake Casitas water is purchased by VRWD in an amount that exceeds 
1,000 hundred cubic feet (HCF) in any monthly billing period, a Purchased Water Surcharge 
(PWS) is billed to customers. The PWS will only be charged to customers served well water 
as follows: The PWS will be assigned to upper Tiers beginning with the usage in Tier 4 and 
then proceeding down to the lower Tiers until the quantity of water in the Tiers is greater than 
the quantity of water purchased.  See the example below. The cost of electricity and 
disinfection will be deducted from the PWS cost. 
 

 
 

PURCHASED WATER SURCHARGE (PWS) EXAMPLE 

Quantity of Water 
Purchased:  

 2,500 Units  

Casitas Cost per Unit:     $2.31 / Unit 
Credit: Baldwin Electricity, Disinfection & UVRGA $0.63 / Unit 
Cost per unit:     $1.68 / Unit 
Total Casitas Water Cost:    $4,200   
          

Tier 

Total Usage 
(Pumped + 
Purchased) 

[Units] 

Purchase 
Water 

Surcharge 
Allocation 

[Units] 

PWS 
Allocation 
per Unit 

[$] 

Total 
PWS 

Charge 
[$] 

Tier 1  (1-5) 
5 Units 

9,700 0 $0 $0 

Tier 2  (6-12) 
7 Units 

9,500 0 $0 $0 

Tier 3  (13-33) 
21 Units  

11,000 200 $1.68 $336 

Tier 4  (33+) 2,300 2,300 $1.68 $3,864 

Total 32,500 2,500   $4,200 
 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 69 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 35 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

APPENDIX II 
 

CAPACITY CHARGE* SCHEDULE 
  
 Maximum Capacity Additional 
Meter Size           GPM Multiplier           Charge Dwelling   
 ¾” 30 1.0   $4,365 $0.00 
 1" *               50               1.7                 $7,406 
 2” 160 5.3           $23,168 
 3" 320 10.7           $64,718 
 4" 1,000 33.3           $145,470 
 
 *Properties that need a ¾” meter for normal service but a 1” meter only for fire sprinklers 
shall pay the Capacity Charge for the ¾” meter.The minimum meter size in VRWD shall be 
¾”.  Larger sizes shall be reviewed individually by the Board, and subject to available water 
supply, the Capacity Charge will be determined on the same basis. 
 
Capacity Charge Costs were established in 1989 with an Engineering News Record Los 
Angeles Construction Cost index of 5,789.77 and adjusted to 2015 costs using the March 
2015 index of 10,995.27.  
 
ADDITIONAL DWELLING UNITS 
Additional dwellings typically replace landscaping and result in reduced overall water use so 
no Capacity Charge is assessed.     
 
 
  
*Government Code Section 66013 (b)(3) 
 
  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 70 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 36 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

APPENDIX III 
 

ANNEXATION FEE SCHEDULE 
  
ADMINISTRATION FEE WITH CEQA REQUIREMENT                   $ 1,400 
ADMINISTRATION FEE WITHOUT CEQA REQUIREMENT         $    550 
LAFCO FEE        *(ESTIMATE DEPOSIT) 
MAPPING FEE       *(ESTIMATE DEPOSIT) 
STATE FEE        *(ESTIMATE DEPOSIT) 
PLAN CHECKING FEE:  

Public Improvement Costs Fee Deposit  

 $0 -   $ 999 $400  

$1,000 - $ 9,999 $400 + 15% of cost over $1000 

$10,000 - $49,999 $1,750 + 10% of cost over $10000 

$50,000 - $99,999 $5,750 +  5% of cost over $50000 

$100,000 - $999,999 $8,250 +  2% of cost over $100000 

$1,000,000 - and over $26,250 +  1% of cost over $ 1,000,000 

 
 
* - ESTIMATED DEPOSIT SHALL BE BASED ON THE MOST CURRENT FEE 
SCHEDULE AS ADOPTED BY THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION. 
 
  
SPECIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING FEE SCHEDULE 
 
BOARD MEMBER FEE’S         $800 
ATTORNEY FEE'S FOR ANY PART OF AN HOUR INCL. TRAVEL  $300 
STAFF & RECORDER                                               $200 
LEGAL NOTIFICATION                                                      $  75 
 TOTAL:                                                    $1,075 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 71 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 37 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

 APPENDIX IV 
VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 

RECORD RETENTION GUIDELINES 

1/18/2023 
    

**Unless otherwise stated, all records of VRWD are retained in electronic format 

***Records Retention Guidelines: Based on Secretary of State Local Government Record 
Management Guidelines  
(A-Typical Administrative Retention Periods C-Based on City Government) 

        

Document Title Retention 
Period          

Referenced 
Page # 

Notes 

Accounting & Financial 
Records 

      

Accounts Payable Audit + 4 
Years 

C-29 Invoices, Check Copies, 
Supporting Documents 

Accounts Receivable Audit + 4 
Years 

C-29   

Applications Completion 
+ 2 Years 

C-29 Utility connections, 
disconnects, registers, 
service 

Customer Proof of Ownership Active + 1   Escrow documents 

Bank Reconciliation Audit + 5 
Years 

C-29 Statements and all 
supporting documentation 

Billing Records Audit + 2 
Years 

C-29 Customer name, service 
address, meter reading, 
payments, 
applications/cancellations 

Budget - Adopted Permanent C-29   

Budget - Proposed Current 
Year + 2 
Years 

C-29   

Checks Audit + 5 
Years 

C-29 Includes payroll, canceled 
& voided checks 

Deposits, Receipts Audit + 5 
Years 

C-29 Checks, coins, currency 
(receipts for customer 
deposits) 

General Ledger Permanent C-29   

Invoices Audit + 2 
Years 

C-29   

Taxes Receivable Audit + 3 
Years 

C-29   

Grants Completion 
+ 5 Years 

    

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 72 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 38 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

Utility Billing Current 
Year + 2 
Years 

C-29   

Payroll, Personnel & HR       

Adjustments Audit + 4 
Years 

C-30   

Benefit Enrollment Active + 1   (Considered personnel 
records) 

COBRA Active + 1   (Considered personnel 
records) 

Employee Handbook Supersede 
+ 2 Years 

C-20   

Employee Records Active + 1 A-2 Active until employee 
leaves/terminates 

Employee Timesheets Audit + 6 
Years 

C-30   

Interview Documents 2 A-2   

Medical Leave Completion 
+ 30 Years 

C-20 Family Leave, 
certifications, tests, W-4's 

Payroll Register Permanent C-30   

PERS Employee Deduction 
Reports 

Termination 
+ 4 Years 

C-30   

PERS , Social Security, SSI Permanent C-21   

Salary Records Termination 
+ 3 Years 

C-30   

Training 3 A-2   

Economic Interest Statements Completion 
+ 4 years 

  Form 700 

Deferred Compensation Termination 
+ 5 Years 

C-30   

Travel Active + 1 A-2   

Reports       

Audits Permanent C-30   

Bank Statements Audit + 2 
Years 

C-30   

Federal & State Tax Audit + 4 
Years 

C-30 Forms 1096, 1099, W-4, 
W-2 

Financial Statements Audit + 7 
Years 

C-30 Balance Sheet, Income 
Statement, etc. 

State Controller Report Permanent C-30 Controller may destroy 
after 5 years 

        

Water Utility Administration       

Policy/Procedure/ 
Organization 

      

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 73 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 39 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

Billing/Customer Records Current 
Year + 2 
Years 

C-30 Billing, correspondence, 
complaints 

Connection Records Permanent C-44 Maps, water line 
connections 

Will Serve Letters Permanent     

Legal Notices Current 
Year + 4 
Years 

C-23 Public notices, legal 
publications 

Lawsuits, Litigation, Pending 
Litigation 

Completion 
+ 4 Years 

    

Minutes Permanent C-23   

Notices, Meeting Current 
Year + 2 
Years 

C-23 Special Meetings, 
Agendas, (GC34090)  

Ordinances Permanent C-23   

Policies & Procedures Active + 2 
Years 

A-2   

Rates Supersede 
+ 2 Years 

C-45   

Resolutions Permanent C-23   

Business License Termination 
+ 4 Years 

C-29   

Bids, RFQ's, RFP's Audit + 4 
years 

C-30   

Agreements & Contracts Duration of 
Contract + 
5 years 

C-30   

Unsuccessful Bids or 
Proposals for Contracts and or 
Services 

2 years C-30   

Master Plans Current + 2 
years 

C-45   

Purchase Orders Audit + 4 
years 

    

        

Flood Control       

Drainage Facilities Permanent C-44 Includes dams, lakes, 
basins, creeks 

Flood Zones Permanent C-44 Flood maps 

Flood Insurance Supersede 
+ 2 Years 

C-44   

Reports/Studies Completion 
+ 2 Years 

C-45   

Water System       

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 74 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 40 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

Inventory Equipment Current 
Year + 2 
Years 

C-45   

Locations  Permanent C-45 Mains, valves, hydrants, 
wells 

Maintenance & Operations Current 
Year + 2 
Years 

C-45 Work orders, inspection, 
repairs, cleaning, reports, 
complaints 

Maps Permanent C-45 Line location; easements  

Meter Operations Current 
Year + 2 
Years 

C-45 Reader reports, orders, 
tests, maintenance reports 

Vehicle Ownership & Title Life of the 
Vehicle 

C-29   

Well & Pumping Current 
Year + 2 
Years 

C-45 Times operational, power 
used and quantity, pump 
meter readings 

Reports        

Conservation Current 
Year + 2 
Years 

C-45   

Consumption Current 
Year + 2 
Years 

C-45   

Corrosion Control Current 
Year + 12 
Years 

C-45 Compliance 
documentation 

Discharge Monitoring Current 
Year + 5 
Years 

C-45 Average amount of 
pollution discharged into 
waters of municipality 

Drinking water corrections Current 
Year + 10 
Years 

C-45   

Hydrograph Permanent C-45 Daily flow of streams 

Public Education Current 
Year + 12 
Years 

C-46 Compliance 
documentation 

Quality Parameters  Current 
Year + 12 
Years 

C-46   

Source Water Current 
Year + 12 
Years 

C-46 Compliance 
documentation (lead & 
copper) 

State Certification Current 
Year + 12 
Years 

C-46 Compliance 
documentation 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 75 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 41 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

Variances, Water System Current 
Year + 5 
Years 

C-46   

Well Level Permanent C-46   

Tests       

Bacteriological Analysis Current 
Year + 5 
Years 

C-46 Compliance records 
(location, date, method, 
results, corrections, 
analysis) 

Chemical Analysis Permanent C-46 Compliance records 
(location, date, method, 
results, corrections, 
analysis) 

Quality Current 
Year + 12 
Years 

C-46 Compliance 
documentation including 
sampling data, analysis, 
reports, surveys, 
documents, evaluation, 
schedules, valves 

Water Main & Valve Records Permanent C-46   

Violations, Drinking Water Current 
Year + 3 
Years 

C-46 Retention applies to each 
violation 

  

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 76 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 42 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS 
 

Section Description Date 

Addendum I 
Rate Increase for all Zones, approved June 8, 
2005 

6/8/05 

Sec. 10.233 
Restoration of Water Service – Payment for 
service reconnection must be made in cash or 
cashier’s check only 

7/13/05 

Addendum I 
Rate Increase for all Zones, Approved June 14, 
2006 

6/14/06 

Addendum I 
Rate Increase for all Zones, Approved April 27, 
2007 

5/09/07 

Addendum I 
Increase Residential Deposit – Approved March 
11, 2009 

3/11/09 

Addendum I 
Rate Increase for all Zones, Approved August 11, 
2010 

8/11/10 

N/A 
Miscellaneous text revisions & Rate & CIP & 
Processing Fees 

12/14/11 

Appendix I 
Casitas Rate Increase Pass Through Effective 
July 1, 2012 

7/1/12 

Appendix I 
Miscellaneous text revisions & Rate & Processing 
Fees 

12/15/12 

Sec. 28-35 Added new sections on Financial Policies 2/13/13 
Sec. 36 Added description on use of District Equipment 12/15/13 

Appendix I Rate increase, added lock cut & fire flow test fees 12/15/13 
 Remove “County” from name of District 12/10/14 

Sec. 3 Insert text from Sec. 8 12/10/14 
Sec. 4 Add Provision to reduce meter size 12/10/14 
Sec. 8 Add Water Waste Prohibitions 12/10/14 
Sec. 9 Clarify Classes of Water Service 12/10/14 

Sec. 11 
Allow progress payments on disputed bills prior to 
Board Hearing 

12/10/14 

Sec. 20 
Edit Will Serve definition for updated County 
Waterworks Manual 

12/10/14 

Sec. 32 Add description of Reserve Funds 12/10/14 
Appendix I Rate increase & Delete Relocation Fee 12/10/14 
Appendix I Temp. Drought Surcharge 5/13/15 

Appendix II 
Update Capital Improvement Fee & Rename to 
Capacity Charge 

5/13/15 

Sec. 2,4,20,21 
Define a second unit as a “separate” structure & 
clarify that a separate meter is required for a 
second unit except apts.&MH pks  

 
5/13/15 

Appendix I Rate Change to Cost-of-Service Rates 9/14/16 

Sec 2 
Add definition of “Commercial” & “Single Family 
Residential” 

11/9/16 

Appendix I 
Rate Change to Lower Water Use Fluctuation & 
Usage Reduction 

3/15/17 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 77 of 96



Ventura River Water District 
Rules and Regulations 
 

 Page 43 of 43 July 19, 2023DRAFT  

Sec 4,10,20,30 
Deposit Credit, Write off Bad Debt, Casitas water 
Allocations, Purchasing limits 

2/15/18 

Appendix I Rate Change and Implement Water Budgets  2/15/18 
Appendix I Increase late Penalty  8/15/18 

Sec. 10 & 11 Update to accommodate SB 998 3/18/20 
Sec. 5,12,15,20,28  Miscellaneous edits 3/18/20 

Sec. 28 Modified Purchase Order Requirements 8/18/21 
Appendix I Rate Change 4/15/22 

8 Update Water Waste Provisions 6/15/22 
Appendix I Water Waste Penalty Increase 8/15/22 

10.1.2, 32, 36, 39, 40, 
Appendix IV 

Update renters’ section, Update reserve policy, 
Insert Fixed Asset Policy, added Abusive Waste 
Water Penalty Relief, Insert Record Retention 
Policy with Appendix IV 

1/18/23 

Appendix I 
Rate Change, Tier Width Change, and New Fees 
for Fire Standby Charges, Will Serve Letters, and 
Fire Flow Verification 

5/10/23 

Sec. 31 
Created Investment Policy as a stand-alone 
document. 

6/19/23 

Sections 28 -38, 40, 
and Appendix IV 

Sections related to financial policies were placed 
into a separate Financial Policies & Guidelines 
document  

10/18/23 

Section 38 
“Use of District Equipment” was added to the 
Personnel Policy Handbook as Section 3107 

10/18/23 

Section 39 
“Leak Relief” was renumbered as Section 28 due 
to sections being removed  

10/18/23 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 6B

Agenda Packet - Page 78 of 96



VRWD Personnel Policy    Page 15 of 125 May 10, 2023 

3107	Use	of	District	Equipment		
District tools and equipment are intended for use on District projects. The private use of District tools 

and equipment by employees or Directors is prohibited. 

3108	Drug	and	Alcohol	Testing	

3108.1  Pre‐Employment Drug Testing: As a part of the District’s employment screening process, 
any applicant to whom a conditional offer of employment is made must pass a test for controlled 
substances, per procedures described below. The offer of employment is conditioned on a negative 
drug test result. Applicants will be informed of the District’s drug testing policy in the employment 
application. 

3108.2  Reasonable Suspicion Testing: If an employee’s supervisor or manager has a verifiable and 
confirmed reasonable suspicion by at least two (2) people, including any Board Members, who are 
qualified by having reasonable suspicion training, that the employee is working in an impaired 
condition or otherwise engaging in conduct that violates these Guidelines, then the employee will 
be asked about any observed behavior or impaired condition and offered an opportunity to give a 
reasonable explanation. If the employee is unable to explain the behavior, he or she will be 
requested to take a drug test in accordance with the procedures described herein. If the employee 
refuses to cooperate with the administration of the drug test, the refusal will be handled in the 
same manner as a positive test result, which results in termination. 

3108.3  On‐the‐Job Inquiry: Should an injury occur while working, a drug or alcohol test may be 
administered if the injured employee’s supervisor has a reasonable suspicion that an employee was 
injured due to drug or alcohol use. 

3108.4  Procedures for Drug Testing:  

The District will refer the applicant or employee to an independent, National Institute on Drug 
Abuse (“NIDA”), certified medical clinic or laboratory, which will administer the test. The District 
shall require drug testing for: A) pre‐employment testing, B) random testing, and C) reasonable 
suspicion testing. The District will pay the cost of the test. If the employee is determined by 
verifiable and confirmed reasonable suspicion observation as unable to drive or impaired for 
driving, then a District supervisor or General Manager will transport the individual to a medical 
facility for immediate testing or treatment.  

The employee will have the opportunity to alert the clinic or laboratory personnel to any 
prescription or non‐prescription drugs that he or she has taken that may affect the outcome of the 
test. The clinic or laboratory will handle the required testing. The District will have no control over 
the clinic or laboratory’s testing methods. The clinic or laboratory will inform the District as to 
whether or not the applicant passed or failed the drug test. If an employee fails the test, he or she 
will be considered to be in violation of these Guidelines and will be subject to discipline accordingly. 

ATTACHMENT 6D

Agenda Packet - Page 79 of 96



DATE: October 18, 2023  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Bert J. Rapp, General Manager 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 2023-361: MODIFICATIONS TO STAFF POSITIONS 

SUMMARY 

This item is presented at the request of Director Peggy Wiles.  The current General 
Manager (GM) is scheduled to retire on December 31, 2023.  In preparation for the 
transition of staff the Board has elected to promote the current Assistant General Manager 
(AGM) to the General Manager position.  The Board is currently negotiating an 
employment agreement with the Assistant General Manager. This leaves the AGM 
position open. The AGM position was established to ensure training to reduce the 
District’s vulnerability to losing knowledge transfer in case the GM decides to leave the 
District. 

The Office Manager has been gaining education and experience to aspire to be assigned 
greater responsibilities. This report provides opportunities for the Board to make 
permanent and temporary changes to staff positions to bring a greater level of cross 
training to the leadership positions and to boost the support for the new GM during the 
next 5 years with the increased responsibilities associated with the 2023 Water Projects 
and consolidations with Tico Mutual and Casitas Mutal.  

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
The General Manager recommends that the Board take the following actions:   

1. Approve Resolution 2023-361 Modifications to Staff Positions.

2. Modify the Personnel Policy to include the new Job Description for the position of 
“Office Manager/Assistant General Manager”.

3. Update the Salary Range Schedule dated October 18, 2023 to include: “Office 
Manager/Assistant General Manager” and “Technical Assistant (Position Expires
12-31-2023)”

BACKGROUND  

The changes proposed in this memo are intended to enable and accelerate the transitions 
of staff to new positions and job assignments.  The Assistant General Manager is ready 
and able to assume full General Manager responsibilities.  The Office Manager has 
consistently demonstrated an ability to take over and manage tasks over and above the 
Office Manager’s responsibilities. 

Agenda Packet - Page 80 of 96



Casitas Mutual Consolidation Agreement 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT   
The transition of the Assistant General Manager to the General Manager’s position is 
incorporated in the adopted 2023/24 budget. The raise and promotion of the Office 
Manager is not included in the current budget and may cause line item #60000 Salaries 
to go over budget by about 0.6% depending on the amount of overtime needed this fiscal 
year.  

Attachments: 
7A - Resolution 2023-361 Modifications to Staff Positions. 
7B - Job Description for the position of “Office Manager/Assistant General 
        Manager” 
7C - Salary Range Schedule dated October 18, 2023 

Agenda Packet - Page 81 of 96



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VENTURA RIVER 
WATER DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-361 
MODIFICATIONS TO STAFF POSITIONS 

WHEREAS, The current General Manager is scheduled to retire on December 31, 2023; and   

WHEREAS, The Board has elected to promote the current Assistant General Manager to the 
General Manager position; and 

WHEREAS, The Board desires to make permanent and temporary changes to staff positions to 
accommodate staff changes; and 

WHEREAS, The Board is currently negotiating an employment agreement with the Assistant 
General Manager and it is desired that the Assistant General Manager assume the role of General 
Manager beginning October 19, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, The Office Manager has served the Ventura River Water District for three years; and 

WHEREAS, The Office Manager has, in the last three years been preparing herself to take on 
responsibilities greater than the Office Manager position, including obtaining a Bachelor’s Degree 
in Business Administration and completing multiple training courses covering general 
management of the District, preparing to take Water Operator exams; and, 

WHEREAS, The Office Manager regularly requests job assignments that are above and beyond 
the duties of the Office Manager and all the while completing normal Office Management 
responsibilities.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF THE VENTURA RIVER WATER 
DISTRICT THAT; 

1. The attached Job Description for “Technical Advisor” shall exist from October 19, 2023
until December 31, 2023.

2. The Job title for the current General Manager shall be changed to “Technical Advisor”
effective October 19, 2023.

3. Beginning October 19, 2023 the Assistant General Manager shall assume the position of
General Manager with compensation and benefits expected to be established by the
Board on November 15, 2023 retroactive to October 16, 2023.

4. In recognition of the extra effort and productivity of the Office Manager, the Board hereby
creates a new position entitled “Office Manager/Assistant General Manager” per the
attached job description, provides a 7% salary increase and increases the PTO allocation
to the “six through ten years of service (28) days” category for the next two years of service
with the salary and PTO changes effective October 16, 2023.

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 82 of 96



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of October 2023. 

CERTIFICATION I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted 
by the Board of Directors of the Ventura River Water District at the meeting held on October 18, 
2023, motion by __________________________ and seconded by ______________________, 
motion passed by the following vote:  

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:       Attest:  

 

 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Ed Lee, President     Bert J. Rapp, Secretary/Clerk 
 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 83 of 96



Technical Advisor 
(Temporary Position October 19th to December 31st 2023) 

Definition 

The Technical Advisor is an at‐will employee who serves at the pleasure of the Board of 
Directors.   This position provides input to the General Manager and the Board related to 
planning, organizing and directing the activities and operations of the Ventura River Water 
District.   

Examples of Technical Advice 
• Formulating long range goals related to water source development and water

demand management, equipment and system maintenance and enhancement of
the water system along with the budgeting for it through the 20 year Capital
Improvement Program.

• Input on water rates and revenues keeping them in balance.
• Preparation of Board agendas, water production and sales reports and related

activities for the District.
• Administration of the District's budget.
• The work of all District staff.

Working Conditions and Physical Requirements 
Work is performed primarily  in  an  office  environment  utilizing  modern  office  equipment  
and technology and may require sitting for prolonged period of time using a computer.  This 
position requires standing, walking and may twist, reach, bend, crouch and kneel.  An 
incumbent must be  able  to  meet  the  requirements  of the  classification  and  have  mobility,  
vision,  hearing  and dexterity levels appropriate to the duties to be performed.  This position 
also requires some field work at times, which may require frequent walking in operational areas 
to identify problems or hazards.   
Employees must possess the ability to lift, carry, push, and pull materials and objects up to 25 
pounds. 

Exempt /Non ‐ Exempt 
• This is an exempt position pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act.

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 84 of 96



Office Manager/Assistant General Manager 

Definition 

The Office Manager/Assistant General Manager is an at‐will employee who serves at the 
pleasure of the General Manager.   Under the direction of the General Manager this position is 
responsible for assisting with the planning, organizing and directing the activities and 
operations of the Ventura River Water District.  The Office Manager/Assistant General Manager 
is potentially involved in all aspects of the day‐to‐day water district operations and 
administrative functions. This includes functions such as attending all District Board Meetings 
and taking minutes.  The primary responsibilities of this position are to maintain the District's 
financial records, accounts receivable, Payroll, Human Resources, and accounts payable. As 
time allows additional tasks as Assistant General Manager shall be incorporated. This position is 
also responsible for supervising the office staff. 

Examples of Duties and Responsibilities 
• Perform a wide variety of complex, responsible and confidential clerical and administrative

tasks.
• Respond to customers in person and on the phone.
• Process outgoing and incoming mail.
• Maintain District files and official records.
• Attend District Board meetings and prepares minutes.
• Perform financial and accounting related duties, including the preparation of monthly

financial statements, tax reports, receiving payments and reconciling them with purchasing
orders, tracking vendor and invoice information, assisting with bid requests, price quotes,
purchase and expenditure requests, and purchase orders.

• Responsible for the District banking.
• May supervise and train assigned subordinates to ensure office work flow is maintained and

office goals are met; assign work according to changes in workload priorities; evaluate office
and administrative functions to recommend changes in office procedures; may evaluate the
work performance of staff.

• Responsible for the preparation of payroll.
• Perform related duties and other responsibilities as required.

 Assist the Board of Directors in developing and implementing District policies and
procedures.

 Participates in formulating long range goals related to water source development and water
demand management, equipment and system maintenance and enhancement of the water
system along with the budgeting for it through the 20 year Capital Improvement Program.

 Prepares public works contracts for improvements needed by the District and manages
advertising, awarding, administering and inspecting the work.

 Participates in water rate reviews and managing Protest Hearings.

 On occasion, performs "on‐ call" duties, water production, distribution system
maintenance, and office responsibilities.

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 85 of 96



 Participates in preparing Board agendas, reports, water testing schedules, water production
and sales reports and related activities for the District.

 Keeps abreast of the water utility field relative to state and federal issues such as water
quality, lead pipe and source water regulations.

Desirable Knowledge and Abilities 

Knowledge of: 

 District practices and procedures and policies.

 Modern office practices, methods, and equipment, including computer equipment.

 Word processing methods, techniques, and programs; basic accounting methods,
procedures, and terminology; database and spreadsheet applications and programs.

 Principles of business letter writing.

 Basic principles of record keeping.
• Techniques for providing a high level of customer service by effectively dealing with the

public and District staff.
• Principles and practices of government budget preparation and administration, especially

utility operations and California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requirements.
• Principles of management supervision, training and performance evaluation.

 Water utility operations and regulations.

Ability to: 

 Respond to and effectively prioritize multiple phone calls and other requests for service.

 Make accurate arithmetic computations.

 Perform responsible clerical support work with accuracy, speed, and minimal
supervision.

 Process payroll.

 Train, supervise and evaluate staff.

 Organize, maintain, and update office database and records systems.

 File materials alphabetically, chronologically, and numerically.

 Enter and retrieve data from a computer with sufficient speed and accuracy to perform
assigned work.

 Operate modern office equipment, including computer equipment and word ‐
processing, database, spreadsheet, and graphics software applications programs.

 Establish, maintain, and foster positive and harmonious working relationships with
those contacted in the course of work.

Working Conditions and Physical Requirements 
Must possess  mobility to work in  a  standard  office  setting  and  use  standard  office  
equipment, including a computer;  vision to read printed  materials and a computer screen;  
and  hearing and speech to communicate  in  person  and  over the telephone.  This is primarily 

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 86 of 96



a sedentary office classification although standing in work areas and walking between work 
areas may be required.   

Finger dexterity is needed to access, enter, and retrieve data using a computer keyboard, 
typewriter keyboard, or calculator and to operate standard office equipment.  Positions in this 
classification occasionally bend, stoop, kneel, reach, push, and pull drawers open and closed to 
retrieve and file information.    

Employees must possess the ability to lift, carry, push, and pull materials and objects up to 25 
pounds. 

Minimum Qualifications 

 Completion of an AA degree in Accounting or higher.

 Must have or be willing to obtain California Water Treatment Operator Grade II and Water
Distribution Operator Grade II certifications.

 Demonstration of increasingly responsible experience (preferably with a water district)
directing, preparing and coordinating a variety of programs including budget and fiscal
control.

 Desired to reside within 20 minutes driving time of the District's boundaries.

License Requirements 
• Possess a Class C California driver's license and a driving record acceptable to the

District's insurance carrier.

Exempt /Non ‐ Exempt 
 This is an exempt position pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act.

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 87 of 96



HOURLY  RANGE MONTHLY  RANGE ANNUAL  RANGE

POSITION MIN MAX MIN MAX MIN MAX

Water Operator I $25.96 $37.75 $4,500 $6,544 $54,000 $78,524

Water Operator II $35.68 $51.41 $6,184 $8,912 $74,211 $106,943

Water Operator III $37.44 $53.55 $6,489 $9,282 $77,872 $111,380

Field Supervisor $48.08 $62.50 $8,333 $10,833 $100,000 $130,000

Office Assistant $21.63 $33.30 $3,750 $5,772 $45,000 $69,258

Account Administrator $20.96 $37.12 $3,633 $6,434 $43,600 $77,202

Office Manager/Assistant 
General Manager

$48.08 $67.97 $8,333 $11,782 $100,000 $141,380

Assistant General Manager $48.08 $67.97 $8,333 $11,782 $100,000 $141,380

General Manager $69.71 $87.20 $12,083 $15,115 $145,000 $181,380

Technical Assistant (Position 
Expires 12-31-2023)

$69.71 $87.20 $12,083 $15,115 $145,000 $181,380

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT

EMPLOYEE SALARY RATE RANGES

October 18, 2023

ATTACHMENT 7C

Agenda Packet - Page 88 of 96



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VENTURA RIVER 
WATER DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-362 

VOLUNTEER AGREEMENT IMPLEMENTATION 

WHEREAS, The current General Manager, Bert Rapp is scheduled to retire on December 31, 
2023; and   

WHEREAS, As General Manager Bert Rapp has voluntarily spent personal time over the last 13 
years performing tasks on District property for the betterment of the District; and 

WHEREAS, After retirement, Bert Rapp may desire to help the District with volunteer tasks such 
removing surplus rocks or cleaning up fallen oak trees on various District properties; and 

WHEREAS, The District has a Volunteer Agreement that holds the District harmless when 
volunteers enter District property and perform tasks beneficial to the District. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF THE VENTURA RIVER WATER 
DISTRICT THAT: 

1. If Mr. Bert Rapp signs a current District standard Volunteer Agreement for activities
acceptable to the current General Manger and Field Supervisor the Board welcomes the
volunteer contributions by Mr. Bert Rapp.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of October 2023. 

CERTIFICATION I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted 
by the Board of Directors of the Ventura River Water District at the meeting held on October 18, 
2023, motion by __________________________ and seconded by ______________________, 
motion passed by the following vote:  

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT: Attest: 

______________________________  ______________________________ 
Ed Lee, President Bert J. Rapp, Secretary/Clerk 

ATTACHMENT 8A

Agenda Packet - Page 89 of 96



 

 

DATE:  October 18, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G., Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: WATER AND DISTRICT STATUS 

WELLS & PRODUCTION 

The static aquifer level at Well #2 on October 1, 2023, was at elevation 544.2 feet; and decreased 
2.5 feet since the first of last month. The aquifer is 28.9 feet above the 35-year average for 
October 1st.  

Well #1 is pumping 1,067 gpm, down 9 gpm from last month. Well #7 is pumping 798 gpm, down 
33 gpm from last month, Wells #2, #3, #4 and #6 were off-line in September. 

USAGE 

Sales dollars billed on September 30, 2023, amounted to $244,070 ($34,779) under budget. Last 
year we billed $268,046 during the same period. Water sold in September 2023 amounted to 
31,646 HCF, a decrease of 49.8% below the 63,102 HCF sold in September 2013.  

Charts are enclosed to depict the ground water status and water usage. On October 1, 2023, 
Lake Casitas level was at 72.0% of full capacity at elevation 539.62, with storage of 171,262 AF. 
The lake decreased 0.9%, 0.71 feet and 1,561 AF since last month.  

ET adjustment:  The ET was decreased by 1% for the September 30th water bill because ET was 
slightly below average for the period August 15th to September 15th due to the cooler weather. 
This decreases the irrigation portion of the customer’s monthly water budget.  

ACTIVITIES 

Operations & Maintenance 
 SCADA - After several modifications the system has been working automatically since 

September 18, 2023.  
 
 A persistent water leak on the 8” water main on Howard Avenue was located with 

assistance from Cal Rural Water Association and repaired.  
 
 Edison approved the Net Energy Metering (NEM) application for the Parker site on 

October 2, 2023. 
 
Regulatory 
LAFCo has set the annexation hearing for Tico and 1000 Burnham Road for November 15, 2023. 
 
Customer Log 
No customer complaints were logged in August. 

Agenda Packet - Page 90 of 96



50.0

25.9

31.4

20.7

30.1

53.0

13.3
12.4

29.3

15.4
17.1

6.9

3.6

27.1

31.9

37.8

14.2

46.6

28.2

19.0

45.5

9.8

22.2

29.5

13.3

17.7

26.8

34.4

23.8

8.8

25.8

16.1

32.0

17.5

13.6

4.2

13.8

5.0

16.8

23.0

14.9

31.3

11.1

18.4
16.9

47.7

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

1
97

8
1

97
9

1
98

0
1

98
1

1
98

2
1

98
3

1
98

4
1

98
5

1
98

6
1

98
7

1
98

8
1

98
9

1
99

0
1

99
1

1
99

2
1

99
3

1
99

4
1

99
5

1
99

6
1

99
7

1
99

8
1

99
9

2
00

0
2

00
1

2
00

2
2

00
3

2
00

4
2

00
5

2
00

6
2

00
7

2
00

8
2

00
9

2
01

0
2

01
1

2
01

2
2

01
3

2
01

4
2

01
5

2
01

6
2

01
7

2
01

8
2

01
9

2
02

0
2

02
1

2
02

2
2

02
3

In
ch

es
 o

f 
R

ai
n

Rain Year

Historic Annual Rainfall - At VRWD Office

Average = 22.35" 

October 1, 2023

ATTACHMENT 10A

Agenda Packet - Page 91 of 96



28.9

11.6

8.6 9.1
10.3

12.0

28.0

11.2

27.3

17.0

6.1

16.9

47.7

544.0

514.8

553.0

525.5

535.9

530.1

494.6

515.5

479.5

507.9

481.7

503.8

472.2

491.8

469.1

545

491.1

533.8

522

533.3

517.4

526.4

491.5

530.0

498.7

555.4

542.0

72 %

86 %

81 %

60%

35.1%

43.8%

30.4%

45.0%

41.2%

44.9%

32.3%

35.0%

29.8%

72.0%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

410

430

450

470

490

510

530

550

570

Ju
n
e‐
1
0

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
0

Ju
n
e‐
1
1

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
1

Ju
n
e‐
1
2

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
2

Ju
n
e‐
1
3

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
3

Ju
n
e‐
1
4

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
4

Ju
n
e‐
1
5

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
5

Ju
n
e‐
1
6

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
6

Ju
n
e‐
1
7

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
7

Ju
n
e‐
1
8

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
8

Ju
n
e‐
1
9

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
1
9

Ju
n
e‐
2
0

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
0

Ju
n
e‐
2
1

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
1

Ju
n
e‐
2
2

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
2

Ju
n
e‐
2
3

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
3

Ju
n
e‐
2
4

D
ec
e
m
b
e
r‐
2
4

R
ai
n
 ‐
In
ch
e
s

El
ev
at
io
n
 A
b
o
ve
 S
ea

 L
ev
el

Chart 9VENTURA RIVER UPPER BASIN & LAKE CASITAS LEVELS 
October 1, 2023                                          

hhihhihhihhi

Lake Casitas Level

hhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhi

Probable Limit of Aquifer

hhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhi

hhi

Upper Ventura River 
Groundwater Level

Aquifer Full

74.1 % on 6/21/23

3/22/2023

ATTACHMENT 10A

Agenda Packet - Page 92 of 96



555.4

546.7 ft 544.9
542.0

-119

-99

-79

-59

-39

-19

445

465

485

505

525

545

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g

S
e

pt

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

E
le

va
tio

n 
[f

t]
, a

m
sl

Water Level Hydrograph

Aquifer Level from VRWD Well #2, 1st Day of Each Month

Sounding Pipe Elevation = 565.11

2020

35‐Yr Average

Aquifer Full at 551.7 feet

Start Nitrate Blending Elev 472

2016

Bottom of Aquifer Elev 450

2021

2022

CHART 2

Oct. 1, 2023

ATTACHMENT 10A

Agenda Packet - Page 93 of 96



0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

U
n
it
s 
o
f 
W
at
e
r,
 H
C
F

VRWD TOTAL SYSTEM DEMANDS 

2013 2020 2021 2022 2023

2023

Chart 3

ATTACHMENT 10A

Agenda Packet - Page 94 of 96



$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Water Revenues
FY 2023/2024

Budgeted Water Revenue Year to date Actual Water Revenue Year to date

Revenue is at 5% under Budget for the Year.

Chart 8A

ATTACHMENT 10A

Agenda Packet - Page 95 of 96



0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

U
n
it
s 
o
f 
W
at
er
 U
se
d

Water Usage
FY 2023/2024

Budgeted Water Usage Actual Water Usage

Usage is 8% under 
Budget for the Year.

Chart 8B

ATTACHMENT 10A

Agenda Packet - Page 96 of 96


	Agenda 2023-10-18 October
	Item 3a - 2023-09-20 Minutes
	Item 3bc - Payments & Financials
	Online_Payment_Spreadsheet September
	Sept Check Register
	July IS VRWD
	July IS
	July BS
	July Status of CIP
	Aug IS VRWD
	Aug IS
	Aug BS
	Aug Status of CIP

	Item 4 - Approval to pay NDI
	Item 4a - Budget Transfer 1
	Item 4b - NDI Invoices
	Item 5 - Goals Update
	Item 5a - Goals 2023-24
	Item 6 - Update Rules and Regulations
	Item 6a - Resolution 2023-360 - Update to Rules and Regulations
	Item 6b - Rules & Regulations DRAFT 10-18-2023 V2
	Item 6d - Personnel Policy DRAFT 2023-10-18
	Item 7 - Staff Orginization Changes
	Item 7a - Resolution 2023-361 - Modifications to Staff Positions
	Item 7b - Technical Advisor - Office & Assist Job Description
	Item 7c - Salary Range Schedule 10-18-2023
	Item 8a - Resolution 2023-362 - Volunteer Agreement
	Item 10 - Water & District Status
	Item 10a - Charts
	C4 - Historical Rain Record
	C9 - Aquifer & Lake Levels
	C2 - Aquifer levels
	C3 - System Demands
	C8a - Revenue vs Budget
	C8b - Water Usage vs Budget




